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Dear Members,

The Directors of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“your Company / the Company”) present the 32nd Annual Report on the 
business and operations of your Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Financial Results
(` In Lakhs, except EPS)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from operations - 520.08
Other Income 396.34 80.15
Total Income 396.34 600.23
EBIDTA 194.29 (333.99)
Less : Finance Cost 0.69 7.72
Less : Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 83.96 120.27
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional item and tax 109.64 (461.98)
Exceptional Items - (365.04)
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 109.64 (827.02)
Provision for taxation – (Expense)/ Credit (37.40) 236.16
Net Profit / (Loss) after tax 72.24 (590.86)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 0.12 30.03
Total Comprehensive Income 72.36 (560.83)
EPS (in `) 0.38 (3.07)

Due to separation of all workers under VRS/Separation scheme announced by the Company, the production at the Company’s 
factory stopped from August, 2020. Further, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the scheme of amalgamation 
of the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited, Holding Company and till amalgamation, the Board approved leasing of 
land, building and machinery to the Holding Company and third parties. Hence, there was no revenue from operations for FY 
2021-22 and the total income comprised of lease rentals received from the Holding Company and third parties.  

For the year ended 31st March, 2022, Total Income amounted to ` 396.34 lakhs and Company achieved Net profit of ` 72.24 
lakhs as compared to loss of ` 590.86 lakhs in the previous year. The financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2022 are 
not comparable with the financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2021 due to aforementioned reasons.

Amalgamation of the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited, Holding Company

During FY 2021-22, an application was filed with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench (“NCLT”) for the 
amalgamation of the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited, Holding Company under sections 230-232 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Pursuant to the directions given by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) vide its order dated 18th August, 
2021, a meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company was held on November 15, 2021 for consideration and approval 
of the scheme of amalgamation and the resolution for the scheme of amalgamation of the Company was passed with requisite 
majority. Thereafter, a petition was filed with Hon’ble NCLT and as on the date of this report, petition is yet to be heard. 

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the appointed date, the Business (along with all assets and liabilities 
thereof) of the Company shall be transferred and vested with the transferee Company i.e. Indo Count Industries Limited (ICIL) 
on a going concern basis. As a consideration for the amalgamation, the transferee/ the transferee Company / ICIL will issue 
its equity shares to the shareholders of the Company/transferor company as on the record date in a share exchange ratio of 
2:15 (i.e. 2 (Two) fully paid up equity shares of ` 2/- each of Indo Count Industries Limited (ICIL) would be issued to the Equity 
Shareholders of the company, for every 15 (Fifteen) equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up).

BOARD’S REPORT
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Dividend

In order to conserve the resources, the Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any dividend on the equity 
shares of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Transfer to Reserves

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profit for FY 2021-22 in the statement of profit & loss. 

Share Capital

There was no change in the capital structure of your Company during the year under review. As on 31st March, 2022, the 
issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of your Company is ` 19,24,12,800/- comprising of 1,92,41,280 Equity 
shares of Face Value of ` 10/- each. During the financial year 2021-22, your Company has not issued any equity shares with 
differential rights as to dividends, voting or otherwise, or any convertible securities, warrants or Sweat Equity shares. Your     
Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme or Employee Stock Purchase Scheme.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and articles of association of the Company,                                   
Mr. Anil Kumar Jain (DIN: 00086106) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director of the Company, retires by rotation at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and being eligible, has offered himself for the re-appointment. The Board 
recommends his re-appointment for consideration at the ensuing AGM. As per Secretarial Standard – 2 and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), brief profile and other related information 
of Mr. Anil Kumar Jain, Director retiring by rotation is provided in the Notice of ensuing AGM.

As on 31st March, 2022, Mr. Ashok G. Halasangi, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. K. Muralidharan, Chief Financial Officer and   
Mrs. Amruta Avasare, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company in 
terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. There has been no change in KMP during the year under review.

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as 
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and that they are not aware 
of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to 
discharge duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. The said declarations were taken 
on record by the Board after assessing due veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors are 
independent of the management.

Pursuant to Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all Independent Directors of the 
Company viz. Mr. S. K. Agrawal, Dr. Ashok Desai, Ms. Kala Agarwal and Mr. L. Viswanathan have registered themselves in the 
Independent Directors databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA). Further, all the Independent 
Directors have also cleared the proficiency test conducted by IICA. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, 
all Independent Directors possess high integrity, expertise and experience including the proficiency required to discharge the 
duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

Number of Board Meetings

During the Financial Year 2021-22, Four (4) Board Meetings were held on 23rd April, 2021, 23rd July, 2021, 21st October, 
2021 and 27th January, 2022 through Video conferencing. More details on Board Meetings are provided in the Corporate 
Governance Report.
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Company’s policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has formulated 
“Nomination and Remuneration Policy” which deals inter-alia with the appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. The said policy is uploaded on the website of the Company 
and web-link thereto is https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/nomination-and-remuneration-policy-1.pdf

The salient features of the policy are as under:

I.	 Criteria for appointment:

a.	 NRC shall identify, ascertain and consider the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for the 
appointment as a Director of the Company and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. The Directors shall 
uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity and shall exercise their duties and responsibilities in the interest of 
the Company.

b.	 A person proposed to be appointed as Director should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience 
for the position he / she is considered for appointment. They shall possess appropriate core skills/ expertise/ 
competencies/ knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales and marketing, administration, 
research and in the context of business and/or the sector in which the company operates. The NRC has the discretion 
to decide whether qualifications, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient/ satisfactory for the 
concerned position.

c.	 The Company shall comply with the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations and any other laws if applicable 
for appointment of Director of the Company. The Company shall ensure that provisions relating to limit of maximum 
directorships, age, term etc. are complied with.

II.	 Remuneration of the Whole Time / Executive Director(s) / Managing Director:

a.	 The remuneration including commission payable to the Whole Time / Executive Director(s) / Managing Director shall 
be determined and recommended by the NRC to the Board for approval.

b.	 While determining the remuneration of the Executive Directors, following factors shall be considered by the NRC/ 
Board:

•	 Role played by the individual in managing the Company including responding to the challenges faced by the 
Company

•	 Individual performance and company performance so that remuneration meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks

•	 Reflective of size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s operations and the Company’s 
financial position

•	 Consistent with recognized best industry practices.

•	 Peer remuneration

•	 Remuneration involves balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting performance objectives appropriate 
to the working of the Company and its goals.

•	 Remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to retain and motivate directors to run the company successfully.
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III.	 Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Directors:

	 Sitting Fees: Independent Directors are entitled for sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or Committee of 
the Board or for any other purposes as may be decided by the Board, of such sum as may be approved by the Board 
of Directors of the Company within the overall limits prescribed under the Act and the rules made thereunder, Listing 
regulations or other applicable law.

Annual Evaluation of Board Performance and its Committee and Individual Directors

Criteria of performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and Directors are laid down by Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) of the Company. Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, NRC decided to continue the existing method of performance evaluation 
through circulation of performance evaluation sheets based on SEBI Guidance Note dated 5th January, 2017 and that only 
Board should carry out performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors.

The performance evaluation sheets based on aforesaid SEBI Guidance Note, containing the parameters of performance 
evaluation and rating scale was circulated to all the Directors. The Directors rated the performance against each criteria. 
Thereafter, consolidated score was arrived. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 
the Board has carried out performance evaluation of its own, the Board Committee and all Individual Directors in the aforesaid 
manner. The performance of the Board, committees and individual directors was found satisfactory.

A meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 27th January, 2022 in which  Independent Directors                       
inter-alia reviewed performance of Non-Executive Independent Chairman and other Non-Independent Directors and the Board 
and committees as a whole through performance evaluation sheets.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, state and confirm that:

•	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the applicable accounting standards have 
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

•	 such accounting policies as mentioned in the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022, have 
been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date;

•	 proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

•	 the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022, have been prepared on a going concern basis;

•	 internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and that the said financial controls were 
adequate and operating effectively;

•	 proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have been devised and such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.
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Audit Committee

During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of the Audit committee. As on 31st March, 2022, 
the Audit Committee comprises of 4 members viz. Mr. S. K. Agrawal, Independent Director as Chairman, Dr. Ashok Desai,    
Ms. Kala Agarwal, Independent Directors and Mr. Kamal Mitra, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. More details on the 
Audit Committee are given in Corporate Governance Report. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during 
the year under review were accepted by the Board.

Statutory Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 500063N) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a 
period of 5 years i.e. from the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 21st August, 2017 
upto the conclusion of the 32nd AGM of the Company. Accordingly, the first term of existing statutory auditors is ending on the 
conclusion of ensuing 32nd AGM of the Company. However, due to professional pre-occupations, M/s. Suresh Kumar Mittal & 
Co. have expressed their unwillingness to be re-appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company for a second term at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company places on record its appreciation for the services rendered by M/s. Suresh Kumar 
Mittal & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 
28th April, 2022 proposed and recommended to the members of the Company, appointment of M/s. JLN US & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 101543W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 
five consecutive years from the conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of 37th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, in place of existing statutory Auditors. The Company has also received written consent and 
eligibility certificate from M/s. JLN US & Co., Chartered Accountants under Section 141 of the Act. M/s. JLN US & Co. also 
holds peer review certificate issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The resolution for the appointment of 
M/s. JLN US & Co, Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Company has been placed at the ensuing AGM for 
approval of members of the Company. 

Auditors’ Report

The Auditors’ Report on the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 
issued by M/s. Suresh Kumar Mittal and Co., Statutory Auditors of the Company forms part of this Annual Report. The Auditors’ 
Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer. In terms of the provisions of Section 
143(12) of the Act, no frauds have been reported by the Statutory Auditors in their report for the year under review. Notes to 
the Financial Statements are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, read with rules thereunder, the Board at its meeting held on 27th January, 
2022 had appointed M/s. Kothari H. & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors to conduct the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial 
Auditors in Form No. MR-3 is provided as an “Annexure 1” to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any 
qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

Further, in terms of the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, M/s. Kothari H. & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries have issued the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, 
thereby confirming compliance by the Company of the applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars / guidelines issued thereunder.
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Internal control systems and their adequacy

Your Company maintains adequate internal control system and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of 
operations. The internal control systems are designed to provide a reasonable assurance over reliability in financial reporting, 
ensure appropriate authorization of transactions, safeguarding the assets of the Company and prevent misuse/ losses and 
legal compliances. The Internal Audit reports are periodically reviewed by the management and the Audit Committee and 
necessary improvements are undertaken, if required. 

Public Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public under Chapter V of the Act.

Subsidiaries

During the year under review, your Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies as 
defined under the Act. However, the Company has framed a policy for determining material subsidiaries, which can be 
accessed at web-link https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/psml-policy-on-material-subsidiaries.pdf

Corporate Governance Report

Your Company has adopted best practices of Corporate Governance and complied with all the requirement of Corporate 
Governance laid down by SEBI. As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, a Corporate 
Governance Report along with Statutory Auditors’ Certificate confirming compliance of corporate governance for the year 
ended 31st March, 2022 is provided separately and forms integral part of this Annual Report.

Management and Discussion Analysis Report

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, Management Discussion and Analysis Report containing information 
inter-alia on industry trends, your Company’s performance, future outlook, opportunities and threats for the year ended 31st 

March, 2022, is provided in a separate section forming integral part of this Annual Report.

Annual Return

Pursuant to the amendments in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder and provisions of 
Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, Annual Returns of the Company for FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 are hosted on the website of the 
Company www.pranavaditya.com and web-links thereto are given below:

Annual Return for FY 2020-21:https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/form_mgt_7_2021_psml_website.pdf

Annual Return for FY 2021-22:  https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/annual-return-form-mgt-7-2021-22.pdf

Related Party Transactions

All Related Party Transactions (RPT) entered during FY 2021-22 with Holding Company were on arm’s length basis. Prior 
approval of Audit Committee is obtained for all Related Party Transactions. A statement of all Related Party Transactions is 
reviewed by the Audit Committee and Board on quarterly basis.

During the year under review, the Company has entered into transactions of Lease of land, buildings and machinery to Indo 
Count Industries Limited (ICIL), Holding Company, which were material related party transactions (RPT). Prior approvals of 
Audit Committee, the Board and Shareholders of the Company was obtained for said material RPT. The details of material 
related party transactions defined under Companies Act, 2013 are provided in Form AOC -2, attached to this Report as 
“Annexure 2”. Further, the related party transactions as per IND AS 24 are also given in the notes to the financial statements.



8Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited Annual Report 2021-22

Your Company has adopted a policy on Related Party Transactions and same is uploaded on the website of the Company at 
https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/psml-policy-on-related-party-transactions.pdf

Particulars of Loans, Investments, Guarantees, Securities under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

During the year under review, pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, no loans were given to 
any person, nor any Guarantees or securities were provided. Further, no investment was made in the securities of any other 
body corporate.

Risk Management

The Company has devised Risk Management Policy which takes care of risk identification, assessment and mitigation. Some 
of the risks faced by the Company are raw material price risk, financial risk, foreign currency risk etc. The details of Risk 
Management are included in Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(10) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, your Company has 
established a vigil mechanism for the Directors and employees of the Company to report concerns about unethical behaviour, 
actual or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of Code of Conduct. The details of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy are 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/psml_-_whistle_blower_policy_vigil_mechanism.pdf

Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at workplace, your Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual 
Harassment of Women at workplace and has constituted an Internal Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to look into the complaints relating to sexual harassment at 
workplace of any woman employee. During the year under review, your Company has not received any complaint pertaining 
to sexual harassment and no complaint was pending as on 31st March, 2022.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required under Section 
134(3)(m) of the Act, read with Rules thereunder is given as “Annexure 3” forming part of this Report.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

The information regarding remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, median remuneration and other related 
disclosures required pursuant to Section 197 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), 
Rules, 2014 is provided as “Annexure 4-(I)” and “Annexure 4-(II)” to this report. 

Significant or Material orders passed by Regulators / Courts

During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Material Changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between 
the end of the Financial Year 2021-22 to which the Financial Statements relate and the date of the Board’s Report.
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Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, your Company has complied with all the applicable secretarial standards issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India. The same has also been confirmed by Secretarial Auditors of the Company in the Secretarial 
Audit Report.

General

1.	 During the year under review, cost audit was not applicable to the Company; however, pursuant to the Order made by the 
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, the prescribed accounts and 
records have been made maintained.

2.	 The provisions pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company during the year 
under review.

3.	 As required in terms of Secretarial Standard (SS)-4, it is hereby confirmed that there is no corporate insolvency resolution 
process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and no proceeding is pending under the said code.

Acknowledgements and Appreciation

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank Central and State Governments, customers, suppliers, shareholders and bankers 
for their consistent support and co-operation to the Company. Your directors also place on record sincere appreciation for the 
contribution and commitment by all the employees of the Company.

									         For and On behalf of Board of Directors

									         S. K. Agrawal 
                                                                                                                 Chairman

                                                                                                                       DIN: 00400892

Date 	 : 28th April, 2022
Place 	 : Mumbai
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Annexure 1
FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (‘Audit period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

•	 We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by  Pranavaditya 
Spinning Mills Limited for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v.	 The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) 
viz. :-

a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit Period) and
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h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period)

We have relied on the mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations as 
applicable specifically to the Company. The list of major head/groups of Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable specifically 
to the Company is:

1.	 Textiles (Development and Regulation) Order, 2001

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Amendment made thereunder;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with balance of Non-Executive Independent Directors and Non-
Executive Non-Independent Directors. During the year under review, there was no change in the composition of Board of 
Directors of the Company.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that based in our opinion, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period, the Company has passed resolution for approval of the Scheme of Amalgamation 
of the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited (ICIL), holding Company, in the NCLT Convened Meeting of the equity 
shareholders of the Company. 

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not passed any resolution for:

1.	 Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc.
2.	 Redemption / buy-back of securities.
3.	 Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.
4.	 Foreign technical collaborations.

For KOTHARI H. & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Hitesh Kothari
Membership No. 6038 

Certificate of Practice No. 5502
Place 	 : Mumbai											          UDIN: F006038D000228755 
Date 	 : 28th April, 2022

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure- A
To,
The Members
PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS LIMITED.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For KOTHARI H. & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Hitesh Kothari
Membership No. 6038 
Certificate of Practice No 5502
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Annexure 2
FORM NO. AOC- 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub section 
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso is given below: 

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
 
2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details

1. Name (s) of the related party Indo Count Industries Limited (“ICIL”)
2. Nature of Relationship Holding Company
3. Nature of contracts / arrangements / 

transaction
Leasing of land along with buildings and structures thereon and machineries 
and equipment to Indo Count Industries Limited

4. Duration of the contracts / arrangements 
/ transactions

The lease agreements are for a tenure of 1 year or an extension thereof from 
the date of commencement of lease or till the amalgamation of the Company 
with Holding Company/ICIL whichever is earlier. 

5. Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including 
the value, if any

The terms and conditions of lease are as per the lease agreements entered 
into between the Company and ICIL. 

The lease rental income is on arm’s length basis and based on the valuation 
report.

Lease rent income on lease of land, building & machinery to ICIL for the FY 
2021-22 is ` 200.68 Lakhs. 

6. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any Refer Note below
7. Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

Note: Approval of the Board of Directors of the Company was obtained in the Board Meeting held on August 18, 2020 and 
January 16, 2021. Further, approval of the Members of the Company was obtained by way of postal ballot on March 7, 2021. 
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Annexure 3

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
ETC.

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required to be 
disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended    
31st March, 2022 are provided hereunder:

(A)	 Conservation of energy-

(i)	 The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

	 Conservation of energy is continuous process and possible measures for conservation of energy more specifically 
for reduction of power usage were taken.

(ii)	 The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL

(iii)	 The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: NIL

(B)	 Technology absorption-

(i)	 The efforts made towards technology absorption: NIL

(ii)	 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution: N.A.

(iii)	 In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year) – The Company has not imported any technology during last 3 years.

(a)	 The details of technology imported: N.A.
(b)	 The year of import: N.A.
(c)	 Whether the technology been fully absorbed: N.A.
(d)	 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: N.A.

(iv)	 The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL

(C)	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Foreign Exchange earned – FOB value of exports* NIL 213.80
Foreign Exchange outgo – Selling commission / claims NIL NIL

*Including deemed exports of ` Nil (previous year ` 182.42 lakhs)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

S. K. Agrawal 
Chairman

DIN: 00400892
Date 	 : 28th April, 2022
Place 	 : Mumbai
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Annexure 4 (I)

Information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Disclosure under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

a)
Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director / Key Managerial Personnel 
and Designation

Remuneration 
of Director / 

Key Managerial 
Personnel for the 
year ended March 
31, 2022 (Amount 

in `)

%  increase in the 
remuneration in 
the year ended 
March 31, 2022

Ratio of the 
remuneration of 

each Director 
to the median 

remuneration of 
the employees

1 Mr. S. K. Agrawal 
Chairman and Independent Director

55,000/-

Refer Note 1 below

0.21

2 Mr. Anil Kumar Jain 
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

NIL Refer Note 1

3 Mr. Kamal Mitra 
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

45,000/- 0.17

4 Dr. Ashok N. Desai 
Non-Executive Independent Director

50,000/- 0.19

5 Ms. Kala Agarwal 
Non-Executive Independent Director

50,000/- 0.19

6 Mr. L. Viswanathan 
Non-Executive Independent Director

25,000/- 0.10

7 Mr. A. G. Halasangi 
Chief Executive Officer

19,85,176/- - 7.64

8 Mrs. Amruta Avasare 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

NIL  
Refer Note 2 below

 Not Applicable

9 Mr. K. Muralidharan 
Chief Financial Officer

NIL

	
Notes:

1.	 The remuneration of all Directors of the Company comprises of sitting fees for attending Board and Committee Meetings. 
Hence, calculation of percentage increase in remuneration is not applicable. Further, Mr. Anil Kumar Jain, Non-Executive 
Non-Independent Director has voluntarily waived off his entitlement of sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings and 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee Meetings of the Company from the meetings of FY 2018-19.

2.	 Mr. K. Muralidharan and Mrs. Amruta Avasare are not drawing any remuneration from the Company during the year 
under review as they are holding position of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary respectively of Indo Count 
Industries Limited (Holding Company) and drawing remuneration from Indo Count Industries Limited.

b)	 The percentage (%) increase in the median remuneration of employees – 5.51%

c)	 As on 31st March, 2022, the Company had 27 permanent employees.

d)	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof - There was no increase/increment in the salaries of employees during the financial year 2021-22. There was no 
managerial personnel during the financial year 2021-22. Hence, comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration is not applicable. 

e)	 We affirm that the remuneration paid during the year 2021-22 is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company.
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Annexure 4 (II)

Disclosure under Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014

i)	 Details of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn during 2021-22:

	 Details of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn during 2021-22 will be provided on request. 
As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report and Accounts are being sent to 
the members and others entitled thereto excluding the said information of top ten employees. The said details of top ten 
employees will be available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during the business 
hours on working days of the Company upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any member is interested in 
obtaining a copy thereof, such member may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

ii)	 List of employees of your Company employed throughout the Financial Year 2021-22 and were paid remuneration 
not less than one crore and two lakh rupees:

	 During the year under review, there were no employees of the Company drawing remuneration of ` 1.02 Crore p.a. and 
above.

iii)	 Employees employed for the part of the year and were paid remuneration during the Financial Year 2021-22 at a 
rate which in aggregate was not less than eight lakhs and fifty thousand rupees per month:

	 During the year under review, there were no employees of the Company drawing remuneration of ` 8.50 Lakhs per month 
and above being employed for the part of the year.

	 On behalf of the Board of Directors

S. K. Agrawal
Chairman

DIN: 00400892
Date 	 : 28th April, 2022
Place 	 : Mumbai 
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Industry Structure and Development 

The Spinning Industry, which is highly capital intensive, marks the initial stage of textiles and apparel value chain. In order 
to meet the domestic demand for yarns, the Government formulated policies to develop and support this industry, as textile 
industry is one of the largest providers of employment in India.  As a major cotton producing country, for sustainability and 
financial viability of the spinning industry, export of cotton yarn is of very much importance. Having the second highest 
spindleage in the world, the spinning industry in India contributes to more than one-fourth of global trade of cotton yarn. Cotton 
textiles comprise more than 60 per cent of Indian textile exports. 

During FY 2021-2022, the demand of yarn was increased and hence, yarn prices had also shown increase compared to 
previous year. 

India accounts for about one-third of global cotton area. The Cotton production declined from 356 lakhs bales in 2020-21 to 
335 lakhs bales in 2021-2022, while cotton consumption was 340 lakhs bales in 2021-22 as compared to 335 lakh bales in 
2020-21. 

Domestic cotton prices remained firm during 2021-2022. Cotton yarn prices were increased as compared to FY 2020-21, giving 
the spinners improved margins in first three quarters. However, during last quarter of March, 2022, margins were squeezed.

Operational and Financial Performance

Due to separation of all workers under VRS/Separation scheme announced by the Company, the production at Company’s 
factory stopped from August, 2020. Further, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the scheme of amalgamation of 
the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited, Holding Company and till amalgamation, the Board approved leasing of land, 
building and machinery to the Holding Company and third parties. Hence, there was no revenue from operations for FY 2021-
22 and the total income comprised of lease rentals received from Holding Company and third parties. For the year ended 31st 
March, 2022, total income amounted to Rs. 396.34 lakhs and Company achieved Net profit of Rs. 72.24 lakhs as compared 
to loss of Rs. 590.86 lakhs in the previous year.	

For the year ended 31st March 2022, as the Company did not have any debt/borrowings, the debt equity ratio, interest 
coverage ratio and debtors turnover ratio are not applicable. Further, there were significant change (i.e. change of 25% or 
more) in other financial parameters viz. Inventory Turnover ratio, Operating Profit margin (%), Net Profit margin (%) and Return 
on Net Worth (%) for the financial year ended March, 31, 2022 due to stoppage in production and no revenue from operation 
during FY 2021-22.

Opportunities, Threats, Risks and Concerns  

The condition of the spinning industry is dependent on the vagaries of cotton fibre production in the country. The acreage, 
output rainfall and minimum support prices always have bearing on the fortunes of the industry from time to time. Adequate 
availability of cotton at right prices is very much crucial for spinning mills. The cotton prices are exposed to price fluctuations 
and in case of exports, the exchange fluctuations is also one of the major risk. The Company has risk management policy and 
commodity risk management policy to manage price and exchange fluctuation.  

Some of the threats faced by spinning industry include technological obsolescence, high minimum support price for cotton, 
overcapacity in industry, increasing input costs, skilled labour availability besides fluctuating demand for yarn. 

With the opening up of domestic and international markets, overall demand for cotton yarn is projected to remain good. The 
uptrend in domestic yarn price and its higher exports may provide opportunities and some respite to the spinning industry.

However, global pricing might impact the Indian textile sector’s supply and demand dynamics.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Industry Outlook

There has been a gradual recovery in both supply and demand for cotton yarn thereafter during three quarters. There are signs 
of pickup in economic activity however war situation may affect global demand of yarn. The future of Indian textile industry 
looks promising, buoyed by strong domestic consumption and export demand.  

However, yarn prices are expected to taper as cotton yarn realisations remain unsustainable at current levels, which may 
affect its demand.

Segment

Your Company operates in a single segment i.e. Textiles.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Your Company maintains adequate internal control system and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of 
operations. The internal control systems are designed to provide a reasonable assurance over reliability in financial reporting, 
ensure appropriate authorization of transactions, safeguarding the assets of the Company and prevent misuse/ losses and 
legal compliances.

Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied have been 
set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Human Resources

Industrial relations remained cordial during the period under review. In July 2020, the Company announced Voluntary 
Retirement Scheme (VRS)/ Separation Scheme (SS) for the workers of the Company, pursuant to which, all workers exercised 
the option of separation from the Company. As on March 31, 2022, your Company has 27 permanent employees. 

Cautionary Statement

The statement in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” describe Company’s objectives, projects, estimates 
and expenditure which may be “forward-looking statement” within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. The 
actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied, depending upon the economic and climatic conditions, 
government policies, taxation and other incidental factors.

		  							       For and on behalf of Board of Directors
				  

												            S. K. Agrawal
												                   Chairman

                          DIN: 00400892
Date		 : 28th April, 2022
Place	 : Mumbai
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In compliance with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 as amended from time to time (“Listing Regulations”), a report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 
2022 is given below:

1.	 Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to observe the highest level of ethics in all its dealings and 
accountability to ensure efficient conduct of affairs of the Company. The core value of your Company’s governance 
process includes independence, integrity, responsibility, transparency and fairness.

2.	 Board of Directors

(a)	 Composition and Category of Directors 

	 During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of Board of Directors of the Company. 
As on 31st March, 2022, the Board comprises of 6 Directors out of which 2 are Non-Executive Non- Independent 
Directors and 4 are Non-Executive Independent Directors including one Woman Director. All Directors are competent 
and experienced personalities in their respective field. 

	 The Board is headed by Mr. S. K. Agrawal, Non - Executive Independent Chairman of the Company. 
 
	 The composition of the Board details of other directorships and Committee positions as on 31st March, 2022 are 

given in the table below:
      

Name of the Director DIN Category Number of 
Directorships 

held in 
other public 
companies#

Number of Directorships held in 
other listed companies along with 

nature of Directorship

Number of 
Membership/ 

Chairmanship of 
Board Committees@
Member Chairman

Mr. Sushilkumar K. Agrawal 
(Chairman)

00400892 C & NEID 9 Margo Finance Limited – NENID 
Reliance Home Finance Limited – NEID

6 4

Mr. Anil Kumar Jain 00086106 NENID 2 Indo Count Industries Limited – C & 
WTD 

Margo Finance Limited – C & NENID

3 NIL

Mr. Kamal Mitra 01839261 NENID 1 Indo Count Industries Limited – WTD 2 NIL

Dr. Ashok Desai 03609419 NEID 2 Hindoostan Mills Limited – NEID 
Siyaram Silk Mills Limited - NEID

2 NIL

Ms. Kala Agarwal 08015576 NEID 1 Omnitex Industries (India) Limited 
-NEID

2 NIL

Mr. L. Viswanathan 00193056 NEID NIL NIL NIL NIL

Abbreviations:
C 		  = Chairman
WTD 	 = Whole-time Director
NENID 	 = Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
NEID 	 = Non-Executive Independent Director

Notes: 

#Number of Directorships held in other public companies excludes Directorship of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills 
Limited, Directorships in private companies, deemed public companies, foreign companies and companies under 
Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (earlier Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956) and alternate Directorships.

@Only Membership / Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of listed and 
unlisted public limited companies including Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited are considered. Further, number of 
Memberships does not include number of Chairmanships. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Memberships or Chairmanships of the stipulated Board Committees held by all Directors are within the limit specified 
under Regulation 26 (1) of the Listing Regulations. Further, none of the Directors hold Directorships in more than 
twenty Companies including ten Public Companies pursuant to the provisions of Section 165 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The number of other directorships held by all Directors including Independent Directors are within the limit 
prescribed under Listing Regulations.  

During the year under review, All Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the criteria of Independence as 
specified under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations and 
have furnished declaration of independence to that effect pursuant to Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations. The said declarations of independence were reviewed and taken 
on record by the Board and in the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the criteria 
of independence and all conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.  

Mr. Ashok G. Halasangi is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company u/s 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
who looks after the day to day operations of the Company. Further, Mr. Anil Kumar Jain and Mr. Kamal Mitra,                                            
Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors of the Company are Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director 
(Director - Works) in Indo Count Industries Limited, Holding Company respectively. However, Mr. Kamal Mitra also 
oversees business of the Company to some extent.    

There is no inter-se relationship among any of the Directors of the Company.

(b)	 Independent Directors Meeting 

	 During the year under review, a Meeting of Independent Directors of the Company was held on 27th January, 2022 
through Video Conferencing wherein all Independent Directors were present. At the said meeting, Independent 
Directors discussed and evaluated performance of the Chairman, other Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors, 
the Board and its various committees as a whole and also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the management of the Company and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively 
and reasonably perform its duties effectively. 

(c)	 Familiarisation Programme  

	 Your Company has in place Familiarisation Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them about 
the Company and their role, rights and responsibilities in the Company. At the time of appointment of a Director 
(including Independent Director), a formal letter of appointment is given to them, which inter alia explains the role, 
function, duties and responsibilities expected from them as Directors of the Company. The draft letter of appointment 
containing terms and conditions of their appointment is available on the website of the Company www.pranavaditya.
com. The Director is also explained the compliances required from him/her under the Companies Act, 2013, Listing 
Regulations and other applicable laws. The Chairman also does one to one discussion with the newly appointed 
Directors to familiarize them with the Company’s operations. On the request of the individual director, site visits to 
plant locations are also organized by the company for the directors to enable them to understand the operations of 
the Company. Further, on an ongoing basis as a part of Agenda of Board meetings, discussions are made on various 
matters inter alia covering the Company’s business and operations, Industry and regulatory updates etc. 

	 The Familiarisation Programme and details of Familiarisation Programme imparted during 2021-22 are uploaded on 
the website of the Company www.pranavaditya.com and can be accessed through web-link https://www.pranavaditya.
com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/psml-familiarisation-program.pdf and https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/04/famililarization-program-21-22.pdf  respectively.

(d)	 Matrix of skills/competence/expertise of Directors

	 The following matrix summarizes list of core skills/ expertise/competencies identified by the Board as required in the 
context of its business and the sector in which the Company operates. 
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Board Competency Matrix
Industry Knowledge/Experience Technical Skills/Expertise/Competencies 
Industry Experience Finance & Accounting Leadership 
Knowledge of Sector  (Textiles) Legal & Governance Business Administration
Knowledge of broad public policy direction Sales and Marketing Corporate Restructuring 
Understanding of government legislation/
legislative process  

Information Technology Human Resource Management 

Global Business Public Relation Strategy and Business Development 
Supply Chain Management Risk Management Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Company’s Board comprises of qualified members, who possesses aforesaid knowledge, experience, technical 
skills, expertise and competencies for effective contribution to the Board and its Committees. 

Details of the skills/ expertise/ competencies possessed by the Directors who were part of the Board as on                    
31st March, 2022, are as follows:

Name Qualification Yrs of 
Experience

Expertise

Mr. Sushilkumar Agrawal 
(Chairman)

Chartered Accountant &  Fellow 
Member of Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India

40+ Finance, Taxation, Accounts & 
Audit  

Mr. Anil Kumar Jain B.Com (Hons.) 40+ Business & Corporate Strategy, 
Industry Experience, Textile field 
expertise

Mr. Kamal Mitra Bachelor Degree in Textile 
Engineering

30+ Production and Technical, Textile 
field expertise

Dr. Ashok N Desai Fellow of Institute of Engineers, 
India 

30+ Textile Technology, Research & 
Development, Innovation

Ms. Kala Agarwal Practising Company Secretary, 
Fellow Member of Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India

20+ Corporate Laws, FEMA and 
Legal

Mr. L. Viswanthan Bachelor Degree in Science, 
Fellow Member of Institute 
of Cost Accountants of India, 
Certified Public Accountant 
(CPA) from USA 

37+ Finance, Business Development, 
Operations, Costing, Capital 
Market Financial Services

(e)	 Board Meetings

	 During the year under review, due to second wave of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 15th June, 2021 read with MCA Notifications dated 3rd May, 2021 (collectively 
referred to as “MCA Notifications”) amended Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) rules, 2014 (“rules”) 
and allowed the meetings on all matters referred under rule 4(1) of said rules to be held through video conferencing 
or other audio visual means. Further, exemption was granted from observing the maximum stipulated time gap of 
120 days between two consecutive Board & Audit committee Meetings vide MCA Circular no. 08/2021 dated 3rd May, 
2021.

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, Four (4) Board Meetings were held on 23rd April, 2021, 23rd July, 2021 21st 

October, 2021 & 27th January, 2022 through Video conferencing in accordance with aforesaid MCA Notifications and 
SEBI circulars and the maximum time gap between any two consecutive Board Meetings of the Company did not 
exceed 120 days. 
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	 Annual General Meeting

	 Due to second wave of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and measures to contain the spread of COVID-19, 
MCA vide General Circular No.21/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 allowed Companies to conduct their Annual General 
meetings (AGMs) through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM) during the calendar year 
2021 subject to certain conditions specified in said circular. Accordingly, 31st AGM of the Company was held through 
VC on 13th August, 2021.

	 Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and AGM

	 Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held through VC/OAVM 
during the year under review is as under:

Name of the Director Attendance at the Board Meetings held through VC Attendance at last AGM 
held through VC on 

13th August, 2021
Held Attended

Mr. S. K. Agrawal 4 4 Yes
Mr. Anil Kumar Jain 4 4 Yes
Mr. Kamal Mitra 4 4 Yes
Dr. Ashok Desai 4 4 Yes
Ms. Kala Agarwal 4 4 Yes
Mr. L. Viswanathan 4 4 Yes

.
(f) 	 Board Meetings Procedure

	 In order to ensure maximum presence of all Directors in the Board Meeting, dates of the Board Meetings are 
fixed in advance after consultation with individual directors and consideration of their convenience. The agenda 
papers along with relevant explanatory notes and supporting documents are circulated within prescribed time to all 
Directors. All the provisions of rules 3 and 4 of the (Meetings of the Board and its powers) rules, 2014 were complied 
with while conducting all Board Meetings/committee meetings through VC.  	

	 Apart from any specific matter, the Board periodically reviews routine business items which includes approval of 
financial results along with Auditors review report, operational performance of the Company, minutes of committee 
meetings, quarterly corporate governance report, statement of investor complaints, shareholding pattern, compliance 
report on all laws applicable to the Company, annual financial statements, annual budget, capital expenditure and 
other matters placed before the Board pursuant to Part A of Schedule II of Listing Regulations. 

3.	 Audit Committee
(a)	 Terms of reference 

	 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers matters specified under Part C of Schedule II of Listing 
Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time. The terms of reference of 
Audit Committee inter alia includes following matters: 

Financial Reporting and Related Processes

	 Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information

 	 Reviewing with the Management the quarterly unaudited financial results and Auditors Review Report thereon 
and make necessary recommendation to the Board.

 	 Reviewing with the Management audited annual financial statements and Auditors’ Report thereon and make 
necessary recommendation to the Board. This would, inter alia, include reviewing changes in the accounting 
policies, if any, major accounting estimates based on exercise of judgment by the Management, significant 
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adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings, disclosure of related party transactions, 
compliance with legal and other regulatory requirements with respect to the financial statements. 

	 Reviewing the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance and Board’s 
Report.

	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

	 Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/ investment by the holding company in the subsidiary 
exceeding Rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing 
loans / advances / investments. 

Internal Controls and Governance Processes

	 Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. Evaluation of Internal 
Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems, Review and discuss with management, the Company’s 
major financial risk exposures and steps taken by the Management to monitor and control such exposure. 

	 Review adequacy of internal audit function, internal audit reports and discussion with Internal Auditors on 
significant findings and follow-up thereon.

	 To oversee and review the functioning of a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

	 Approval of Related Party Transactions (RPT) or any subsequent modifications of RPT and review of RPT on 
quarterly basis.

	 Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer

Audit & Auditors

	 Review and monitor Auditor’s Independence and performance and effectiveness of Audit process. 

	 Reviewing with the management, performance of internal and statutory auditors, adequacy of internal control 
systems. 

	 Review the scope of the Statutory Auditor, the Internal Audit Plan with a view to ensure adequate coverage.

	 Review the significant audit findings from the statutory and internal audits carried out, the recommendations 
and Management’s response thereto.

	 Review and recommend to the Board, appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the Auditors 
including Internal Auditors.

	 Approval of such other services to be rendered by the Statutory Auditors except those enumerated in Section 
144 of the Companies Act, 2013 and payment for such services.

(b)	 Composition and Meetings

	 During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of Audit Committee. As on 31st March, 
2022, the Audit Committee comprises of 4 Directors / Members out of which 3 are Independent Directors. Mr. S. K. 
Agrawal, Chairman of the Audit Committee is a Chartered Accountant and all the Members of the Audit Committee 
are professionals, experienced and possess sound knowledge of finance and accounting practices. 

	 During the Financial Year 2021-22, four (4) Audit Committee Meetings were held on 23rd April, 2021, 23rd July, 
2021, 21st October, 2021 and 27th January, 2022 through Video conferencing in accordance with aforesaid MCA 
Notifications and SEBI circulars and the maximum time gap between any two consecutive Audit Committee Meetings 
of the Company did not exceed 120 days. 
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	 The Composition and attendance of Directors at the Audit Committee Meetings held through VC during the year 
under review is as under:

Name of the 
Director

Category Position Attendance at the Audit Committee 
Meetings held through VC 
Held Attended

Mr. S. K. Agrawal Non-Executive Independent Chairman 4 4
Mr. Kamal Mitra Non-Executive 

Non-Independent
Member 4 4

Dr. Ashok Desai Non-Executive Independent Member 4 4
Ms. Kala Agarwal Non-Executive Independent Member 4 4

Mr. S.K. Agrawal, Chairman of Audit Committee was present for last AGM held through VC/OAVM on 13th August, 
2021.

The partners of the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Chief Financial Officer are invitees to the Audit Committee 
Meetings. Mrs. Amruta Avasare, Company Secretary is Secretary to the Audit Committee and she attends the 
meetings. 

4.	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee  

(a)	 Composition and Meetings

	 During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. 
As on 31st March, 2022, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) consists of 3 Directors / Members viz.               
Mr. S.K. Agrawal, Non-Executive Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Anil Kumar Jain and Mr. Kamal Mitra,               
Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors as members of the SRC. 

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 20(3A) of Listing Regulations, it is mandatory to hold one SRC meeting in a 
financial year. During the year under review, 1 (one) Meeting of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was held 
through VC on 25th March, 2022 and the said meeting was attended by all Members of the Committee.

	 Mr. S.K. Agrawal, Chairman of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was present for last AGM held through VC/
OAVM on 13th August, 2021.

(b)	 Terms of reference

	 The role of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (“SRC”) inter alia includes terms of reference as specified in 
Point B of Part D of Schedule II of Listing Regulations as under: 

•	 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company

•	 Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

•	 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

•	 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders 
of the company.

(c)	 Investor Complaints

	 Your Company takes all effective steps to resolve complaints from shareholders of the Company. The Complaints 
are duly attended by the Company/ Registrar & Transfer Agent and the same are resolved within prescribed time. 
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	 During the year FY 2021-22, no complaint was received from shareholders of the Company and no complaint was 
pending as on 31st March, 2022. There were no complaints of shareholders received from BSE Limited on BSE 
portal and SEBI on SCORES platform. 

(d)	 Compliance Officer

	 Mrs. Amruta Avasare, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

5.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(a)	 Brief description of terms of reference
	
	 The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) includes the matters stipulated in 

Point A of Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as under:  

	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) and other employees. 

	 Lay down criteria for identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors/ Independent Directors 
and KMP and other Senior Management positions; 

	 Recommendation to the Board about appointment, re- appointment, removal of Directors, Senior Management 
Personnel and KMP in accordance with the criteria laid down. 

	 Recommendation to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company. 

	 Formulation of the criteria for evaluation of performance of every Director and carry out performance evaluation 
of Directors and to recommend to the Board on whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of 
Independent Director.

	 Devising a policy on Board Diversity. 

	 Recommendation to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management

(b)	 Composition, Meetings and Attendance

	 During the year under review, there has been no change in the composition of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. As on 31st March, 2022, NRC comprises of 3 Independent Directors headed by Dr. Ashok Desai,                   
Non-Executive Independent Director as Chairman. 

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 19(3A) of Listing Regulations, it is mandatory to hold one NRC meeting in 
a financial year. During the year under review, one meeting of NRC was held through VC on 27th January, 2022. 

	 Composition and Attendance of Directors at the NRC Meetings held through VC during the year under review is as 
under:

Name of the 
Director

Category Position Attendance at the NRC Meetings 
held through VC

Held Attended
Dr. Ashok Desai Non-Executive Independent Chairman 1 1
Mr. S.K. Agrawal Non-Executive Independent Member 1 1
Ms. Kala Agarwal Non-Executive Independent Member 1 1

	 Dr. Ashok Desai, Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present for last AGM held through VC/
OAVM on 13th August, 2021.
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(c)	 Nomination and Remuneration Policy

	 Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, NRC has formulated “Nomination and Remuneration Policy” 
which deals inter alia with nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management. 
The said policy is uploaded on the website of the Company and web-link thereto is:

	 https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/nomination-and-remuneration-policy-1.pdf 

(d)	 Criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors

	 NRC has formulated following criteria for Performance evaluation of Independent Directors: 

	 1.	 Participation at Board /Committee Meetings
	 2.	 Contributions at Meetings
	 3.	 Knowledge and skills
	 4.	 Discharging Role, Functions and Duties
	 5.	 Personal Attributes
	
	 More information on performance evaluation is given in the Board’s Report.

6.	 Remuneration of Directors

At present, all Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled to receive sitting fees of ` 5,000/- each for attending 
Board Meetings, Audit Committee Meetings, Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings, Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee Meetings and Independent Directors Meeting. Details of sitting fees paid to all Directors of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 are as under:

Name of the Director Tenure Remuneration for the 
Financial Year ended

31st March, 2022   
 (Amount in `)

No. of equity shares of 
the Company held by 

Non-Executive Directors 
as on 31st March, 2022

Sitting Fees
Mr. S. K. Agrawal Upto 15th August, 2024 55,000/- NIL
Mr. Anil Kumar Jain* NA NIL 75
Mr. Kamal Mitra NA 45,000/- 1
Dr. Ashok Desai Upto 31st  July, 2023 50,000/- NIL
Ms. Kala Agarwal Upto 6th February, 2024 50,000/- NIL
Mr. L. Viswanathan Upto 7th May, 2024 25,000/- NIL

	 * Mr. Anil Kumar Jain had voluntarily decided not to take the sitting fees for attending Board and other Committee 
Meetings of the Company w.e.f 1st April, 2018.

Notes:

1.	 There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.
2.	 There are no variable components and performance linked incentives.
3.	 There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions between Non-Executive Directors and the Company during the 

year 2021-22.
4.	 The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme.

Criteria of making payment to Non-Executive Directors

The criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors of the Company is disclosed under web-link:
https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/criteria-of-making-payment-to-non-executive-directors.pdf                              
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7. 	 Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee

The Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee (FCA) is constituted to deal with routine financial and administrative matters 
as per the powers delegated to the Committee including but not limited to Opening and closing bank accounts of the 
Company, Revision of signatories & limits of operation of various bank accounts of the Company, availing internet banking, 
issuance of fax indemnity, authorizing Company’s officers to represent the Company before statutory / government/ semi-
government authorities and to sign and file necessary documents with the said authorities and consider and approve 
borrowings from banks upto certain limits. The FCA comprises of Mr. S.K. Agrawal as Chairman and Mr. Anil Kumar Jain 
and Mr. Kamal Mitra as members. During the year under review, no meeting of FCA was required to be held.

8.	 General Body Meetings 

a)	 Annual General Meetings: 

	 The details of previous three Annual General Meeting of the Company are as under: 

AGM Day, Date & Time Venue No. of special Resolutions passed
29th Tuesday, 

13th August, 2019  
at 11.00 a.m. (IST)

Hotel Vrishali Executive, 
Conference Hall, 39 A/2, Tarabai 
Park, District Kolhapur – 416 003

One Special Resolution was passed for 
the re-appointment of Mr. S. K. Agrawal 
as Non-Executive Independent Director 
designated as “Chairman” of the Company 
for a second term of five consecutive years 
w.e.f. 16th August, 2019.

30th Wednesday, 
29th July, 2020 

at 12.30 p.m. (IST)

Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other 
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) VC 
Platform – provided by NSDL

NIL

31st Friday, 
13th August,2021 at 
12.00 Noon (IST)

Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other 
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) VC 
Platform – provided by NSDL

NIL

Due to second wave of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and measures to contain the spread of COVID-19, 
MCA vide General Circular No.21/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 allowed Companies to conduct their Annual General 
meetings (AGMs) through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM) during the calendar year 
2021 subject to certain conditions specified in said circular. Accordingly, 31st AGM of the Company was held through 
VC on 13th August, 2021.

b)	 Extraordinary General Meeting: No Extraordinary General Meeting was held during the year under review. 
However, a meeting of equity shareholders of the Company was held on 15th November, 2021 pursuant to the 
directions contained in an order dated 18th August, 2021 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Mumbai Bench (Hon’ble NCLT) for considering and approving the scheme of amalgamation (by way of merger by 
absorption) of the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited (ICIL). 

c)  	 Postal Ballot:  During the year under review, No postal ballot was held and at present, no special resolution is 
proposed to be passed by postal ballot.  

9.	  Means of Communication

	 Website: The Company’s website www.pranavaditya.com contains the updated information pertaining to quarterly, 
half-yearly and annual financial results, shareholding pattern, important announcements made to the stock 
exchanges, intimation of board meeting dates, newspaper advertisements etc. The said information is available in a 
user friendly and downloadable form in “Investor Section” of website. 

	 Financial Results: Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, the quarterly, half yearly and annual 
financial results of the Company are submitted to BSE Limited after approval of the Board of Directors of the 
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Company within prescribed time. The uploading of financial results on BSE is made through BSE listing centre 
electronic platform. The financial results of the Company are published in one English daily newspaper viz. Business 
Standard/ Free Press Journal and one Marathi newspaper viz. Navshakti within prescribed time. The financial results 
are also uploaded on the website of the Company.

	 Annual Report: Annual Report containing inter alia Standalone Financial Statements, Auditors’ Report, Board’s 
Report, Management discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance Report is sent to all Members of the 
Company and is also available on the website of the Company www.pranavaditya.com. 

	 Designated Exclusive Email ID: The Company has designated Email Id investors@pranavaditya.com exclusively 
for shareholder / investor grievances redressal. 

	 SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redressal System):- SEBI has commenced processing of investor complaints in a 
centralized web based complaints redress system i.e. SCORES. The Company supported SCORES by using it as 
a platform for communication between SEBI and the Company.

	 Uploading on BSE Listing Centre: The quarterly results, quarterly compliances and all other corporate 
communications and disclosures are filed electronically on BSE Listing Centre.

	 Presentations: No presentations were made to analysts, Institutional Investors during the year under review.
 
10.	 Disclosures

a)	 Related Party Transactions

	 All transactions entered with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations 
during the financial year 2021-22 were on arm’s length basis. During the year under review, there were no materially 
significant transactions with related parties that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 
Necessary disclosures regarding Related Party Transactions are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
Further, more details on RPT are provided in the Board’s Report.

	 The Company has formulated a policy for Related Party Transactions and the said policy has been hosted on 
the website of the Company under the web link: https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/psml-
policy-on-related-party-transactions.pdf 

b)	 Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures

	 The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Stock Exchanges / SEBI and other statutory authorities 
on all matters related to the capital markets during the last three years. There were no penalties or strictures imposed 
on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, the SEBI or any statutory authority on matters relating to capital markets 
during last three years. The Company has also obtained Secretarial Audit report and Annual Compliance Certificate 
for the year ended 31st March 2022 as per Regulation 24A of Listing Regulations from M/s. Kothari H. & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries. The said report & certificate does not contain any qualifications or adverse remarks. 

c)	 Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations, 
your Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to enable Directors and employees of the 
Company to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct, 
that could adversely impact the Company’s operations, business performance and / or reputation, in a secure and 
confidential manner. The said policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors/employees 
and direct access to Chairman of Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower 
Policy is available on the website of the Company under the web-link: https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/
uploads/2019/10/psml_-_whistle_blower_policy_vigil_mechanism.pdf 
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	 Your Company affirms that no Director/Employee of the Company has been denied access to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee and no complaint has been received during the year under review. 

	 d)	 Subsidiaries

	 Your Company does not have any subsidiary. However, your Company has formulated a policy on material 
subsidiaries. The said policy is hosted on website of the Company under the web- link:	 https://www.pranavaditya.
com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/psml-policy-on-material-subsidiaries.pdf 

e)	 Code of Conduct

	 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable for all Directors and Senior Management of the Company 
which is in consonance with the requirements of Listing Regulations. The said code is available on the website of 
the Company and can be accessed through web-link: https://www.pranavaditya.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/10/
psml-code-of-conduct.pdf 	

	 All the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct 
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022. A declaration to this effect signed by Mr. Ashok Halasangi, 
Chief Executive Officer forms part of this Report as “Annexure I”. 

f)	 Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) 

	 In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time. The significant accounting policies which are consistently 
applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

	 There is no deviation in following the treatments prescribed in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) in the preparation 
of financial statements for the year 2021-22.

g)	 Risk Management

	 The risk assessment and minimization procedures are in place and the Board is informed about the business risks 
and the steps taken to mitigate the same. More details of Risk Management are included in Management Discussion 
and Analysis. 

 h)	 CEO & CFO Certification

	 Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations, Mr. Ashok Halasangi, Chief Executive Officer 
and Mr. K. Muralidharan, Chief Financial Officer of the Company have furnished certificate to the Board for the year 
ended 31st March, 2022, in the prescribed format. The said certificate has been reviewed by the Audit Committee 
and taken on record by the Board at the Meeting held on 28th April, 2022.

i)	 Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

	 In terms of the provisions of Regulation 76 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 
Regulations, 2018, Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is carried out on a quarterly basis by M/s. Kothari H. & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries. The said report is also submitted to BSE Limited.

j)	 Code for Prevention of Insider Trading 

	 Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time, your Company 
has adopted a code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by designated persons and their immediate 
relatives for prevention of Insider Trading in the shares of the Company. This code is applicable inter-alia to all 
Directors and Designated persons / employees of the Company who are expected to have access to unpublished 
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price sensitive information. This code, inter-alia, prohibits purchase / sale / dealing in the equity shares of the 
Company by Designated persons and their immediate relatives while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information about the Company and during the time when trading window is closed. The Code also contains 
procedure for pre-clearance of trade, disclosure requirements etc. The Code is available on the website of the 
Company at www.pranavaditya.com  

k)	 Certificate on Non-disqualification of Directors

	 M/s Kothari H. & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries have certified that during the year ended 31st March 
2022, none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of the Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA) or any such authority. A certificate issued by M/s. Kothari H. & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries 
to that effect is attached as “Annexure II” forming part of this report.

l)	 Recommendations of the committees

	 During FY 2021-22, the Board has accepted all recommendations made by Audit Committee and Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and other Board committees.

m)	 Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors and all entities in network group 

	 During FY 2021-22, total fees/remuneration of ` 4.10 lakhs was paid to M/s. Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., Statutory 
Auditors. The breakup of the said remuneration is provided in the notes to the financial statements. The statutory 
auditors does not belong to any network group.  

n)	 Disclosure regarding Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013

	 In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at workplace, your Company has adopted a policy for prevention 
of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace. The Company has set up an Internal Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to look into complaints 
relating to sexual harassment at workplace of any woman employee.  During the year under review, no complaints 
pertaining to sexual harassment were received and no complaint was pending as on 31st March, 2022.

o)	 Compliance with Mandatory & Non-Mandatory Requirements

	 The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance specified in Listing 
Regulations. The Company has adopted discretionary requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of Listing 
Regulations as given below:

	 The Board: The Company has a Non-Executive Chairman.   

	 Shareholder’s Rights: Quarterly, half-yearly, annual financial results of the Company are published in English and 
Marathi newspapers and are also forwarded to BSE Limited. The said results are also uploaded on the website of 
the Company www.pranavaditya.com. Hence, the same are not sent to the Shareholders of the Company by email 
or physically.

	 Modified Opinion in Audit Report: There was no qualification or modified opinion in the Independent Auditors’ 
Report on Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022, nor in past 2 years. 

	 Reporting of Internal Auditors: The representatives/partners of Internal Auditors of the Company are permanent 
invitee to the Audit Committee Meeting. They attend each Audit Committee Meeting and present their internal audit 
observations to the Audit Committee. They directly interact with Audit Committee Members during the meeting.
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p)	 General 

	 During the year under review, the Company has no borrowings or raised any fund, hence disclosure pertaining to 
utilization of funds and Credit Rating is not applicable. 

q)	 Compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance

	 All the requirements of Corporate Governance specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of Listing Regulations and of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations have been complied with. 

      
11. 	 Certificate on compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance

	 The certificate regarding compliance of the conditions of corporate governance for the year ended 31st March, 2022 given 
by M/s. Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., Statutory Auditors is given as Annexure III to this Report.

12. 	 General Shareholders’ information

	 32nd Annual General Meeting		  :  	 32nd AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday, August 10, 2022 
										          at 12.30 p.m. (IST) through Video conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means	

	 Financial Year	 				    :  	 April - March

	 Tentative Financial Calendar (for Financial Year 2022-23) for approval of:

Financial Results for Quarter ended 30th June, 2022 (Unaudited) On or before 14-08-2022
Financial Results for Quarter and Half year ended 30th September, 2022 (Unaudited) On or before 14-11-2022
Financial Results for Quarter and Nine Months ended 31st December, 2022 (Unaudited) On or before 14-02-2023
Financial Results for Quarter and Year ended 31st March, 2023 (Audited) On or before 30-05-2023

Dates of book closure:

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books will remain closed from Friday, 5th August, 2022 to Wednesday, 
10th August, 2022

Dividend : No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

Listing on Stock Exchanges			   : 	 BSE Limited
					       					     Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
					       					     Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

	                                    					     Stock / Scrip Code: 531172
Listing Fees                                           	 :	 The Company has paid Listing Fees for FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 
										          to BSE Limited within prescribed time.

Annual Custody Fees					     :	 The Company has paid the Annual Custody Fees to Central
										          Depository Services (India) Ltd. and National Securities 
										          Depository Limited for the year 2021-22
	
ISIN	                                           			   : 	 INE569D01028

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)	  	 : 	 L17119PN1990PLC058139
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Market Price Data 

	 The monthly high and low of the price and volume of shares traded at BSE Limited from April, 2021 to March, 2022 and 
comparison against BSE Sensex is as under:  

Month PSML Share Price BSE Sensex
High (`) Low (`) Traded Volume 

(in `)
High (`) Low (`)

April – 2021 17.60 13.50 2,10,665 50,375.77 47,204.50
May – 2021 17.40 14.00 1,87,663 52,013.22 48,028.07
June – 2021 16.60 14.02 5,33,714 53,126.73 51,450.58
July – 2021 24.30 14.70 35,81,415 53,290.81 51,802.73
August – 2021 27.95 22.50 1,25,43,479 57,625.26 52,804.08
September – 2021 30.95 24.00 25,18,028 60,412.32 57,263.90
October – 2021 40.55 29.50 27,09,034 62,245.43 58,551.14
November – 2021 34.85 28.80 8,09,014 61,036.56 56,382.93
December – 2021 33.50 27.50 11,40,082 59,203.37 55,132.68
January – 2022 35.80 25.60 26,32,382 61,475.15 56,409.63
February – 2022 31.25 22.25 12,57,206 59,618.51 54,383.20
March – 2022 29.00 21.10 10,54,954 58,890.92 52,260.82 

	 Source: BSE Limited website

Registrar & Transfer Agents

Bigshare Services Private Limited
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, 
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, 
Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 059.
Tel.: 022-62638200/40430200
Fax: 022-28475207/62638299 
Email id: investor@bigshareonline.com

Share Transfer System

During the Financial Year 2021-22, transfer of shares was allowed only in dematerialised mode and the same is done 
through the depositories. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular dated 25th January 2022, transmission, transposition & any 
endorsement shall be made only through demat mode. The Company had also sent intimation followed by 2 reminders to 
the shareholders holding shares in physical form to take necessary steps to dematerialize the shares at earliest.

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2022:

No. of equity shares of face 
value of ` 10/- each

No. of 
Shareholders*

% of Shareholders No. of shares held % of shareholding

Upto 500 3,680 92.32 1,58,273 0.82 
501 – 1000 106 2.66 85,164 0.44
1001 – 2000 77 1.93 1,18,073 0.61
2001 – 3000 37 0.93 94,223 0.49 
3001 – 4000 13 0.33 48,426 0.25
4001 – 5000 12 0.30 57,510 0.30 
5001 – 10000 34 0.85 2,38,665 1.24
Above 10000 27 0.68 1,84,40,946  95.85
Total 3,986 100.00 1,92,41,280 100.00
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*No. of shareholders are not consolidated as per PAN No. The Number of shareholders consolidated as per PAN are 
3944 as on 31st March, 2022.

	 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2022:

Category of Shareholder No. of Equity shares 
of Face Value of 

` 10/- each

As a percentage of 
total paid up Share 

Capital
A. Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
Bodies Corporate (Indian Company- Indo Count Industries Limited ) 1,43,41,280  74.53
Sub Total (A) 1,43,41,280 74.53
B. Public Shareholding
(i) Individuals 23,49,136  12.21
(ii) Bodies Corporate 15,27,165  7.94
(iii) Clearing Members 13 0.00
(iv) Hindu Undivided Family 5,55,329 2.89
(iv) NRI’s 16,198 0.08
(v) Trusts 4,000 0.02
(vi) LLP 4,48,159  2.33
Sub Total (B) 49,00,000  25.47
Grand Total (A+B) 1,92,41,280 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The equity shares of the company are available for dematerialisation with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and Central Depository Services of India Limited (CDSL). The equity shares of the company have been notified by SEBI 
for settlement only in the demat form for all investors from 21st March, 2000. ISIN of the Company for dematerialization 
is INE569D01028. As on 31st March 2022, 1,91,79,157 Equity Shares of the Company constituting 99.68% of the issued, 
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company are held in dematerialized form and 62,123 Equity Shares of the 
Company constituting 0.32% are held in physical form. The company’s shares were traded on BSE Limited. 

	 Shares held in demat and physical modes as on 31st March, 2022:

Category Number of % to total equity
Shareholders Shares

Demat Mode
NSDL 686 1,53,98,477 80.03
CDSL 738 37,80,680 19.65
Total 1,424  1,91,79,157  99.68
Physical Mode 2,562  62,123 0.32
Grand Total 3,986 1,92,41,280  100.00

Outstanding GDR / ADR / warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
There are no outstanding GDR / ADR / warrants or any convertible instruments as on 31st March, 2022. 

Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk

For Company’s business, cotton is the key raw material/commodity and the company is exposed to price variation in cotton. 
Pursuant to SEBI circular dated November 15, 2018, bearing reference SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141, 
the Board has approved Commodity Risk Management Policy.
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Plant Location					      
Plot No. 266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, District Kolhapur – 416109, Maharashtra.	

Address for Correspondence

The Shareholders may contact Company or Registrar & Transfer Agent on below address:

The Company Secretary
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited
301, 3rd Floor, “Arcadia”
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021
Phone: 91 22 4341 9500 / 501
Fax: 022 - 2282 3098	
Email Id: investors@pranavaditya.com

Bigshare Services Private Limited
Unit: Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, 
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, 
Andheri (East),Mumbai- 400059
Tel.: 022-62638200/40430200
Fax : 022 – 28475207/62638299 
Email id: investor@bigshareonline.com

                      For Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited

	 S. K. Agrawal
							                Chairman
											                              DIN: 00400892 
Date		 : 28th April, 2022
Place	 : Mumbai

Annexure I

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of Pranavaditya Spinning 
Mills Limited have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

For Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited

Ashok Halasangi
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: April 28, 2022
Place: Kolhapur
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Annexure II

        CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of 
PRANAVADITYA SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
OFFICE NO. 2, PLOT NO. 266, 
VILLAGE ALTE KUMBHOJ ROAD,
TALUKA HATKANANGALE, 
KOLHAPUR -416109, MAHARASHTRA 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of PRANAVADITYA 
SPINNING MILLS LIMITED having L17119PN1990PLC058139 and having registered office at Office No. 2, Plot No. 266, 
Village Alte Kumbhoj Road, Taluka Hatkanangale, Kolhapur-416109, Maharashtra produced before us by the Company for the 
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its 
officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 
ended on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies 
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

S r . 
No.

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company

1. Mr. Sushilkumar K. Agrawal 00400892 25/06/2009
2. Mr. Anil Kumar Jain 00086106 31/07/2007
3. Mr. Kamal Sukhamoy Mitra 01839261 27/09/2007
4. Dr. Ashok Naraharrao Desai 03609419 01/08/2018
5. Ms. Kala Agarwal 08015576 07/02/2019 
6. Mr. Viswanathan Lakshmanan 00193056 08/05/2019

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management 
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Kothari H. & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sonam Jain
(Partner)
Membership No.: F9871						    
CP No.: 12402							                                                   
					      
Place: Mumbai
Date: 26.04.2022          
UDIN: F009871D000211017
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   Annexure III

    AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To	
The Members,
Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“the 
Company”), for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of 
Regulations 46(2) and para C,D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

Managements’ Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been 
limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes 
(Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the 
ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India. We have complied with the 
relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)1, Quality Control for Firms that performs Audits & 
Reviews of Historical Financial information and other Assurance & related service engagements.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 2022 as stipulated in the above 
mentioned Listing Regulations, as applicable.

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Reg. No.: 500063N

Ankur Bagla
Partner
Membership Number: 521915

Dated: 28th April,2022
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 22521915AJVKFL2489



37Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited Annual Report 2021-22

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2022, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

The Board approved VRS/Separation Scheme on July 15, 2020 which resulted in production stoppage. Thereafter, the Board 
at its meeting held on 21st October 2020 approved the scheme of amalgamation of the Company with M/s. Indo Count 
Industries Limited, the holding company from the appointed date i.e., 1st October,2020 or such other date as directed by the 
Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). The Company received No-objection to the said scheme from 
BSE limited and SEBI. The company filed an application for amalgamation with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Mumbai Bench (NCLT). As directed by the NCLT vide its order dated 18th August, 2021, the Company convened a meeting of 
its equity shareholders on 15th November,2021 and the scheme of amalgamation was approved with requisite majority. The 
Company filed a petition on 14th December, 2021 before the NCLT seeking sanction to the scheme. The petition is yet to be 
heard. Consequently, the accounts have been prepared without giving effect of amalgamation on a going concern basis. (refer 
note 14 and 29 to the financial statements).

As on 31st March 2022, current tax assets and other current assets includes amounts recoverable from government department 
for which efforts for recovery are being made (refer note 11 and 12 to the financial statements). Our audit procedures consisted 
of evaluating whether any change was required to management’s position on these uncertainties and the likelihood of 
recoverability. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, 
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Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.  This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view  and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 
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• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.  

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

  
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

i)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

ii)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books 

iii)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

iv)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

v)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
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vi)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

vii)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not paid/provided any remuneration to its directors.

viii)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

a)	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone Financial 
Statements - Refer Note No. 20 to the financial statements.

b)	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

c)	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. 

	 d)	 (i) 	 The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries - Refer Note No. 40 to the financial statements;

		  (ii)	 The management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries - Refer Note No. 40 to the financial statements; and

		
		  (iii)	 Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e)	 In our opinion and based on the information and explanation provided to us, no dividend has been declared or paid 
during the year by the company.

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants  

Firm Registration No.: 500063N

ANKUR BAGLA
Place: New Delhi 									                 Partner
Date:28.04.2022                              					        Membership No.: 521915
UDIN: 22521915AHZDHN1115
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph (I) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” 
of our report of even date to the members of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited on the standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022.

(i) (a)(A)

(i) (a) (B)

(i) (b)

(i) (c )

(i) (d)

(i) (e)

The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation 
of property, plant and equipment.

The company does not have any intangible assets and hence provisions of clause (i) (a) (B) are not applicable to 
the company.

All the property, plant and equipments have been physically verified by the management according to a regular 
program, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its 
assets.  No material discrepancies with respect to book records were noticed on such verification. Discrepancies 
noticed have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name 
of the company.

During the year, the company has not revalued its property, plant and equipments (including right to use assets) 
or intangible assets or both and hence provisions of clause (i) (d) are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records maintaining by the company no 
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding .any benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a)
     

 

(ii)(b)

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals.  In our opinion, 
the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is reasonable. Discrepancies of 10% or more 
in the aggregate for each class of inventory with respect to book records were not noticed on such verification. 
Discrepancies noticed have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five 
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence 
provisions of clause (ii) (b) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(iii) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the company has not made investments in or provided 
any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,  secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties and hence provisions of clause (iii) (a) to (f) of the 
order are not applicable to the company. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us no loans, investments, guarantees 
and security covered under section185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been given by the company 
and hence provisions of clause (iv) of the order are not applicable to the company. 

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any deposit or amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits from the public and hence provisions of clause (v) of the order are not applicable 
to the company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of products dealt with by the company.
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(vii) (a)

(vii) (b)
     

The company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 
goods and services tax,  provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of  
custom, duty of  excise,  value added tax, cess and  any other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding as 
at  31st March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the records of the company, dues referred to in sub clause (a ) which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute are as under:-

S. 
No.

Name of 
the statue

Nature of the 
dues

Amount 
(Rs. In lacs)

Period to which 
the amount relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

1. MVAT Act Reversal of input 
tax credit and 

interest thereon

39.48 2012-2013 Maharashtra Sales Tax 
Tribunal

(viii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there were no transactions which were not recorded 
in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income, during the year, in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no loans or other 
borrowings and hence provisions of clause (ix) (a) to (f) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(x)  (a)

(x) (b)

According to the records of the company during the year no money has been raised  by way of initial public offer 
or further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence provisions of clause (x) (a) of the order are not 
applicable to the company. 

According to the records of the company during the year  the company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully, partially or optionally convertible debentures and hence provisions of clause 
(x) (b) of the order are not applicable to the company. 

(xi) (a)

(xi) (b)

(xi) (c)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or  on the company  by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the records of the company during the year the auditors have not filed any report under sub-section 
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act in form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

According to the records of the company and information and explanation given to us, no whistle blower complaints 
have been received by the company during the year.

(xii) According to the records of the company and information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Nidhi 
Company hence provisions of clause (xii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(xiii) According to the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us, in our opinion all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the 
details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a)

(xiv) (b)

According to the information  and explanations  given to us, in our opinion the  company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The reports of internal auditors for the period under audit provided to the statutory auditors have been considered 
by the statutory auditors.

(xv) According to the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
entered  into any  non cash transactions with directors or persons  connected with them.
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(xvi) (a)

(xvi) (b)

(xvi) (c)

(xvi) (d)

According to the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

According to the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us, during the year, the 
company  has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities as per regulations made  
by the Reserve Bank of India.
.
According to the records examined by us and information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC)  as defined in the regulations made  by the Reserve Bank of India.

According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us, the group has one CIC.
(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year under audit. Cash loss of Rs.706.75 lacs was 

incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.
(xviii) According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us, during the year there has 

been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company and hence provisions of clause (xviii) of the order are 
not applicable to the company.	

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratio, ageing and expected date of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditors knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
audit report that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due  within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We would also like to draw attention 
to note 14 and 29 to the financial statements regarding pending amalgamation of the Company with M/s. Indo 
Count Industries Limited, the holding company from the appointed date i.e., 1st October,2020 or such other date 
as directed by the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).

(xx) According to the records of the company and information and explanations  given to us, during the year section 
135 of the said Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company and hence provisions of clause (xx)(a) and 
(b) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(xxi) According to the records of the company and information and explanations  given to us, during the year preparation 
of consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the company and hence provisions of clause (xxi) of the 
order are not applicable to the company.

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 500063N

Place: New Delhi	  	 						              ANKUR BAGLA
Date: 28.04.2022	                                                                                                                      Partner
UDIN: 22521915AHZDHN1115							              Membership Number: 521915
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Annexure B referred to in Paragraph (II)(f) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited on the standalone 

Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (“the Company”) 
as of March 31st, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that: 

a)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

b)	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
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c)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on “the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI”. 

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 500063N

ANKUR BAGLA
Place: New Delhi						                                                       Partner
Date:28.04.2022 					                           Membership Number: 521915
UDIN: 22521915AHZDHN1115	
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								        Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note 

No.
As at

 31.03.2022 
As at

31.03.2021
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5  2,330.03  2,413.98 
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 15  206.32  243.76 
(c) Financial Assets

(i) Other 6  0.69  0.69 

(2) Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 7  4.15  4.26 
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables 8  -    -   
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8  36.63  32.41 
(ii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 9  88.34  88.34 
(iii) Other 10  587.84  0.01 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 11  188.48  171.61 
(d) Other Current Assets 12  93.34  114.47 

TOTAL ASSETS  3,535.82  3,069.53 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 13  1,924.13  1,924.13 
(b) Other Equity  546.52  474.16 

LIABILITIES
(1) Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 

 - Micro & Small Enterprises 16  -    -   
 - Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 17  572.43  572.43 

(ii) Other 18  338.65  30.25 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 19  154.09  68.56 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  3,535.82  3,069.53 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 20, 30
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3, 4

	
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements								      

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., S. K. Agrawal Anil Kumar Jain
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director
Firm Regd. No.: 500063N DIN - 00400892 DIN - 00086106

Ankur Bagla
Partner K. Muralidharan A. G. Halasangi Amruta Avasare
Membership No.: 521915 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
New Delhi, April 28, 2022	 Mumbai, April 28, 2022

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
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						       ` in lakhs 
Particulars Note No. For the year 

ended
 31.03.2022 

For the year 
ended 

 31.03.2021 
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
I INCOME

Revenue from Operations 21  -    520.08 
Other Income 22  396.34  80.15 

TOTAL INCOME  396.34  600.23 

II EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 23  -    157.80 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and 
Stock-in-Trade

24  -    398.93 

Employee Benefits Expense 25  124.37  224.33 
Finance Cost 26  0.69  7.72 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 27  83.96  120.27 
Other Expenses 28  77.68  153.16 

TOTAL EXPENSES  286.70  1,062.21 

III Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (I-II)  109.64  (461.98)

IV Exceptional Items 29  -    (365.04)

V Profit / (Loss) before Tax (III-IV)  109.64  (827.02)

VI Tax Expense
a) Current Tax  -    -   
b) Previous Years Tax  -    -   
c) Deferred Tax  37.40  (236.16)

VII Profit / (Loss) for the Year (V-VI)  72.24  (590.86)
VIII Other Comprehensive Income

A Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
(i) Remeasurement of the net Defined Benefit Liability / Asset  0.16  41.61 
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 

Profit and Loss
 (0.04)  (11.58)

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (VII+VIII)  72.36  (560.83)
X Earnings per Equity Share (in `) 32

a) Basic  0.38  (3.07)
b) Diluted  0.38  (3.07)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3, 4
		
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements								     
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., S. K. Agrawal Anil Kumar Jain
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director
Firm Regd. No.: 500063N DIN - 00400892 DIN - 00086106

Ankur Bagla
Partner K. Muralidharan A. G. Halasangi Amruta Avasare
Membership No.: 521915 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
New Delhi, April 28, 2022	 Mumbai, April 28, 2022

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
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A.	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
 					   
Particulars Note  ` in lakhs 
As at 31st March, 2020  1,924.13 
Changes in Equity Share Capital  -   
As at 31st March, 2021  1,924.13 
Changes in Equity Share Capital  -   
As at 31st March, 2022 13(a)  1,924.13 

					   
					   
B.	 OTHER EQUITY					   
					     ` in lakhs
Particulars Reserves & Surplus  Total 

Capital 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Other 
Comprehensive 

Income
Balance as at 31.03.2020  25.00  993.43  16.55  1,034.98 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  -    -    -    -   
Restated balance as on 01.04.2020  25.00  993.43  16.55  1,034.98 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    (590.86)  30.03  (560.83)
Balance as at 31.03.2021  25.00  402.57  46.59  474.16 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors  -    -    -    -   
Restated balance as on 01.04.2021  25.00  402.57  46.59  474.16 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    72.25  0.12  72.36 
Balance as at 31.03.2022  25.00  474.81  46.71  546.52

 
Nature and purpose of reserves:					   
Capital Reserve: Standing in books against capital subsidy received for establishing manufacturing unit.				    	
					   
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements		
			 
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., S. K. Agrawal Anil Kumar Jain
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director
Firm Regd. No.: 500063N DIN - 00400892 DIN - 00086106

Ankur Bagla
Partner K. Muralidharan A. G. Halasangi Amruta Avasare
Membership No.: 521915 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
New Delhi, April 28, 2022	 Mumbai, April 28, 2022

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
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						      ` in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended  

31.03.2022
For the year ended  

31.03.2021
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax  109.64  (461.98)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation  83.96  120.27 
Finance Cost  0.69  7.72 
Interest Income  (20.89)  (13.25)
Other Comprehensive Income  0.16  41.61 
Exceptional Items  -    (365.04)
Operating Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital changes  173.56  (670.67)
Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustment for (increase) / decrease in Operating Assets:
Inventories  0.11  657.93 
Trade Receivables  -    430.40 
Current Financial Assets  (587.83)  -   
Other Current Assets  21.13  (566.59)  31.97  1,120.30 
Adjustment for increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Non Current Provisions  -    (65.40)
Trade Payables  -    (488.53)
Other Current Financial Liabilities  308.40  6.77 
Other Current Liabilities  85.52  393.92  (175.18)  (722.34)
Net Income Tax (paid) / refunds  (16.87)  (2.23)
Net Cash Flow from / (used in) Operating Activities (A)  (15.98)  (274.94)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Tangible Assets  -    (0.46)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  -    1.08 
Interest Received - Others  20.89  13.25 
Net Cash Flow from / (used in) Investing Activities (B)  20.89  13.87 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Cost  (0.69)  (7.72)
Net Cash Flow from / (used in) Financing Activities (C)  (0.69)  (7.72)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  4.22  (268.79)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year  32.41  301.20 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year  36.63  32.41 
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance sheet  36.63  32.41 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year Comprises of:
(a) Cash in Hand  0.30  0.04 
(b) In Current Accounts  36.33  32.37 

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., S. K. Agrawal Anil Kumar Jain
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director
Firm Regd. No.: 500063N DIN - 00400892 DIN - 00086106

Ankur Bagla
Partner K. Muralidharan A. G. Halasangi Amruta Avasare
Membership No.: 521915 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
New Delhi, April 28, 2022	 Mumbai, April 28, 2022

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

1.	 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited (the ‘Company’) is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in India whose 
shares are publicly traded. The registered office is located at Office No.2, Plot No.266, Village Alte, Kumbhoj Road, Taluka 
Hatkanagale, Dist. Kolhapur-416109, Maharashtra, India. 

The Company is a Spinning Unit engaged in the manufacture of cotton yarn.

The Financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 were authorized for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the Board of Directors on April 28, 2022. 

2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as ‘Ind 
AS’) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities 
which have been measured at fair value:

-	 Derivative financial instruments,

-	 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) 
The financial statement are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, 
except otherwise indicated. 

3.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 3.1	 Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets:

The company has opted to follow cost model for accounting of its entire property, plant and equipment. Property, plant 
and equipment are stated at original cost inclusive of incidental expenses related to acquisition net of tax / duty credit 
availed, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major repair is performed, its 
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria is 
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the 
expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the 
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as 
at the balance sheet date.

Right-of-use (ROU) assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The carrying 
amount of ROU assets is adjusted for remeasurement of lease liability, if any, in future. Cost of ROU assets comprises 
the amount of initial measurement of lease liability, lease payments made before the commencement date (net of 
incentives received), initial direct costs and present value of estimated costs of dismantling and restoration, if any.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as specified in schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off during the year, 
depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / deletion.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of 
the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates 
certain items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives 
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

In case of some items of plant, depreciation has been provided in range of 26 years (minimum) to 35 years (maximum) 
based on the technical evaluation of the remaining useful life which is different from the one specified in schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 
is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

In case of pre-owned assets, the useful life is estimated on a case to case basis.

3.2	 Investment properties 

	 Investment properties comprise portions of freehold land and office building that are held for long-term rental yields 
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently, investment 
property comprising of building is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

	 The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing cost for long term construction projects if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognized in profit and loss as incurred. 

	 Depreciation on building is provided over the estimated useful lives as specified in schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of investment properties are reviewed, and 
adjusted on prospective basis as appropriate, at each financial year end. The effects of any revision are included in 
the statement of profit and loss when the change arise. 

	 Though the company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment 
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an 
accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation 
Standards Committee. 

	 Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed off or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. 

	 The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss in the period of derecognition.  

3.3	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally 
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is 
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

	
	 The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

	 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method 
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the 
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss.

	 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either 
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made 
on a prospective basis.

	 Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

	 Research and Development Cost:

	 Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognized as an 
intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

-	 The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
-	 Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
-	 How the asset will generate future economic benefits
-	 The availability of resources to complete the asset
-	 The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

	 Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development 
is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation 
expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

	 During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

3.4	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes 
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

3.5	 Impairment of non-financial assets:

	 As at each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired 
and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognized in the previous periods. If any 
indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, if any, the Company determines the 
recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

	 Recoverable amount is determined:

-	 In the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use; and
-	 In the case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows) at the 

higher of the cash generating unit‘s fair value less cost to sell and the value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transaction is taken into account. If no such transactions 
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the Company‘s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and 
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in profit and loss 
section of the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to 
Other Comprehensive Income (the OCI) for such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCI up to the amount 
of any previous revaluation.

3.6	 Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its 
present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

a)	 Raw material, packing material, construction material, stores & spares:

	 Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

b)	 Finished goods and work in progress:

	 Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

c)	 Traded goods:

	 Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

d)	 Wastage and rejections are valued at estimated realizable value.

	 Slow and non-moving material, obsolescence, defective inventories are duly provided for and valued at net 
realisable value. Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred. Materials and supplies held 
for use in the production of inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used 
are expected to be sold at or above cost.

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

3.7	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks which are short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk 
of changes in value.

3.8	 Foreign currency transactions

	 The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company‘s functional currency.

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate 
at the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the 
closing exchange rate. Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each 
balance sheet date at the closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they are arise. 
Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the 
exchange rate at the date of transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on 
transaction of non-monetary items is recognized in line with the gain or losses of the item that gave arise to the 
translation difference (i.e. translation differences on items whose gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive 
income or the statement of profit and loss is also recognized in other comprehensive income or the statement of 
profit and loss respectively).

3.9	 Current versus non-current classification

	 The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An 
asset is current when it is:

-	 Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
-	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading
-	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
-	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period 

	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

	 A liability is current when:

-	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
-	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
-	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
-	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period

	 The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

3.10	Fair value measurement

	 The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

	 -	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
	 -	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
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	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

	 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

-	 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
-	 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is directly or indirectly observable
-	 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is unobservable

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis 
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.

3.11	Revenue Recognition

	 The Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA) notified Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” related to revenue recognition which replaced 
Ind AS 11 “Construction Contracts” and Ind AS 18 “ Revenue” and provide a single, comprehensive model for all 
contracts with customers. The revised standard contains principles to determine the measurement of revenue and 
timing of when it is recognized. The amendment also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing 
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgements and 
changes in those judgements as well as assets recognized from costs incurred to fulfill these contracts. 

	 The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 w.e.f. 1 April, 2018 using the modified retrospective approach. However, the 
adoption of the standard did not have any impact on the financial statements.

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and 
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal 
in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing 
latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

	 The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
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	 Sale of goods:

	 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

	 Rendering of Services:

Revenue from sale of service is recongised as per terms of the contract with customers when the outcome of the 
transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. 

Interest Income:

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate 
(EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial 
asset. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.  

Dividends:

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend.

Lease Income:

Lease agreements by which the risks and rewards incident to the ownership of an asset substantially vest with the 
lessor are recognized as operating leases. Lease rentals are recognized on straight-line basis as per the terms of 
the agreements in the statement of profit and loss.

3.12	Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income 
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 

When the grant relates to the purchase of property, plant and equipment, it is included in non-current liabilities as 
deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives 
of the related assets and presented within other income.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value 
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the 
underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or 
related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest 
is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and 
the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds 
received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

3.13	Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total profit, both 
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period.
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3.14	Taxes

Current Income Tax:

-	 Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis on estimated taxable income and tax credits 
computed in accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of 
assessments / appeals. 

-	 Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss. 
Management periodically evaluates position taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting 
date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement 
of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The break-up of the major components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date has been 
arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets and liabilities where the Company have a legally enforceable right to 
set-off assets against liabilities and where such assets and liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same 
governing taxation laws.

3.15	Segment accounting

	 The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the 
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is 
evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.  

	 The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products / services. 

a)	 Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment including 
inter-segment revenue. 

b)	 Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the segment 
result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are included under 
unallocable expenditure. 

c)	 Income which relates to the Company as a whole and allocable to segments is included in unallocable income. 

d)	 Segment result includes margins on inter-segment and sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit before 
tax to the Company.
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e)	 Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with respective segments. Unallocable assets 
and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to any 
segment.

	 Inter-Segment transfer pricing 

Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer 
price agreed between the segments. Such transfer prices are either determined to yield a desired margin or agreed 
on a negotiated basis.

3.16	Leases

The Company as a lessee: 

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 

(i)	 the contract involves the use of an identified asset, 

(ii)	 the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the 
lease, and

(iii)	 the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding 
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes 
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease 
arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and 
lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The ROU assets are 
initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They 
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term 
and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an 
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset 
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with 
a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the 
Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.
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	 The Company as a lessor:

	 Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the 
lease 	 transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a 
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

3.17	Employee benefits

i)	 Short-term employee benefits

	 All employee benefits payable only within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term 
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia, and incentives 
are recognized in the period during which the employee renders the related service.

ii)	 Post-employment benefits

a)	 Defined contribution plans

	 State Government Provident Scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contribution paid / payable under the 
scheme is recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the 
related services.

b)	 Defined Benefit Plans

	 The employee Gratuity Fund scheme and Leave Encashment scheme managed by different trusts are defined 
benefit plans.

	 The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit 
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, which recognizes each period 
of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to 
build up the final obligation.

	 Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gain and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with 
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which 
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.  
Past service cost is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of plan amendment.

	 Net Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

	 The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee benefit 
expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

-	 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and 
non-routine settlements.

-	 Net interest expense or income.

	 Long-term employee benefit 

	 Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. 
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	 Termination benefits 

	 Termination benefits are recognized as an expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

3.18	Provision, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments

General 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized 
as a separate  asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.  

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

-	 a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation;

-	 a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
-	 a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.

Provision, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Liquidated damages

Provision for liquidated damages are recognized on contracts for which delivery dates are exceeded and computed 
in reasonable manner.
 
Other Litigation claims

Provision for litigation related obligation represents liabilities that are expected to materialize in respect of matters 
in appeal.
 
Onerous contracts 

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value lower of the expected costs of terminating the 
contract and the expected cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company 
recognizes impairment on the assets under the contract.

3.19	Exceptional Items

	 On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities 
of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company. Such 
income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying the 
financial statements.
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3.20	Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

	 Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal groups 
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. This 
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to 
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

	
	 Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single 

amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

	 Assets and liabilities classified as held for distribution are presented separately from other assets and liabilities in the 
balance sheet.

	 A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of the Company that either has been 
disposed of, or is classified as held for sale and:

-	 represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
-	 is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of 

operations,
	 or
-	 is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

	 An entity shall not depreciate (or amortise) a non-current asset while it is classified as held for sale or while it is part 
of a disposal group classified as held for sale.

3.21	Financial Instruments

i)	 Financial assets

	 Initial recognition and measurement 

	 All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

 
	 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial 

assets measured at amortised cost.
 
	 Subsequent measurement

	 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

	 -	 Financial asset at  fair value
	 -	 Financial assets at amortised cost

	 Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of 
profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e fair value 
through other comprehensive income).

	 A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down 
for impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.
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-	 Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold the financial asset to 
collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to 
realize its fair value changes).

-	 Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 
	 A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option. 

-	 Business model test: The Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by 
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

-	 Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates 
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an ‘accounting 
mismatch’) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses 
on them on different basis.

 
	 All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.
  
	 All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for which the entity has elected to present 
value changes in ‘other comprehensive income’. 

	 If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial recognition to measure 
it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only dividend income recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss.

 
	 Derecognition

	 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

-	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

-	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” 
arrangement and either; 

a)	 The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b)	 The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset.

	 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset 
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company 
has retained.
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	 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could 
be required to repay.

 
	 Investment in associates, joint venture and subsidiaries

	 The Company has accounted for its investment in associates, joint venture, and subsidiaries at cost.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

	 -	 Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
	 -	 Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

	 Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

-	 The 12-months’ expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the 
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

-	 Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over 
the life of the financial instrument).

	 The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

	 -	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
	 -	 All lease receivables

	 Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes 
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

	
	 The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade 

receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the 
trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed 
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

	 For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-months’ ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves 
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company 
reverts to recognize impairment loss allowance based on 12-months’ ECL.

	 For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the 
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increase in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

ii)	 Financial liabilities:

	 Initial recognition and measurement 

	 All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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	 The Company‘s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are 
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the 
initial date of recognition, only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as 
well as through the EIR amortization process.
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

	 Financial guarantee contracts

	 Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made 
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due 
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a 
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment 
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization. 

	 Derecognition

	 A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms 
of an existing liability substantially modified, such as exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii)	 Offsetting of financial instruments 

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is 
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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iv)	 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

	 The company enters into derivative contracts to hedge foreign currency / price risk on unexecuted firm 
commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. Such derivative financial instruments are initially 
recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivate contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities 
when the fair value is negative.

 
	 Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit 

and loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized in other comprehensive 
income and presented as a separate component of equity which is later reclassified to statement of profit and 
loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

3.22	Business combination under common control

	 Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or businesses, 
between entities within a group.

 
	 Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling 

of interest method. Under pooling of interest, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their 
carrying amounts, the only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies.

  
	 The financial information in the financial statements in respects of prior periods are restated as if the business 

combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of 
the actual date of the combination. However, if business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period 
information is restated only from that date.

 
	 The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the 

form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and 
presented separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.

3.23	Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified new standards or amendments to the existing standards. 
The Company has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting  
period commencing April 1, 2021.

-	 Extension of COVID-19 related concessions – amendments to Ind AS 116.

-	 Interest rate Interest rate benchmark reform – amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial   Instruments, Ind AS 107, 
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.

	 The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not 
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

3.24	The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are 
effective 1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the 
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

3.25	Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule III

	 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 on 24 March 2021 to 
increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements. These amendments 
are effective from 1 April 2021. Consequently, the Company has changed the classification/presentation of  security 
deposits in the current year. Security deposits (which meet the definition of a financial asset as per Ind AS 32) have 
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been included in ‘other financial assets’ line item. Previously, these deposits were included in ‘loans’ line item. The 
Company has reclassified comparative amounts to conform with current year presentation as per the requirements 
of Ind AS 1. The impact of such classifications is summarised below:

(` In Lakhs)
Balance Sheet (extract) 31st March, 2021 

(as previously 
reported)

Increase / 
(decrease)

31st March, 2022 
(restated)

Other Assets (non-current) 0.69 (0.69) -
Other Financial Assets (non-current) - 0.69 0.69
Loans (current) 0.01 (0.01) -
Other financial assets (current) -  0.01  0.01

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the separate financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made judgements, which have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 
the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted 
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from 
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and 
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mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based 
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The 
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit 
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. 
The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, 
based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each 
reporting period.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option 
to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on 
the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options 
to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such 
as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease 
and the importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations and the availability of suitable alternatives. The 
lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. 
After considering current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to 
lease period relating to the existing lease contracts.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the 
carrying amounts of receivables and unbilled revenues. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future 
uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of 
these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related 
information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based 
on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the 
Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.
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5.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT							       								      
								        ` in lakhs

Particulars  Land - 
Freehold 

 Buildings  Plant & 
Machinery  

Furniture 
& Fixtures 

 Factory 
& Office 

Equipments 

Vehicles Total

Gross Carrying Amount
As at 01.04.2021  846.21  1,016.97  4,078.77  53.81  132.86  14.70  6,143.33 
Additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Disposals / Transfers  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
As at 31.03.2022  846.21  1,016.97  4,078.77  53.81  132.86  14.70  6,143.33 
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01.04.2021  -  386.82  3,160.23  51.29  123.12  7.88  3,729.34 
Depreciation charged for the year  -  17.56  63.30  0.01  1.96  1.13  83.96 
Disposals / Transfers  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
As at 31.03.2022  -  404.38  3,223.53  51.30  125.08  9.01  3,813.30 
Net Carrying Amount
As at 31.03.2021  846.21  630.15  918.54  2.52  9.74  6.82  2,413.98 
As at 31.03.2022  846.21  612.59  855.24  2.51  7.78  5.69  2,330.03 

6.	 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS								     
								      

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Security Deposits  0.69  0.69 
TOTAL                                              0.69  0.69 
Break-up:
Loans considered good - Secured  -    -   
Loans considered good - Unsecured  0.69  0.69 
Loans which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -    -   
Loans - Credit Impaired  -    -   
TOTAL  0.69  0.69 

	 Refer Note No. 37 for information about Credit Risk and Market Risk of Loans.

7.	 INVENTORIES

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Stores & Spares  4.15  4.26 
TOTAL                                              4.15  4.26 
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8. 	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Cash in Hand  0.30  0.04 
Balances with Banks:
  - In Current Accounts  36.33  32.37 
TOTAL                                              36.63  32.41 

9.	 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Balances with Banks
  - Held as Margin / Fixed Deposits (a)  88.34  88.34 
TOTAL                                              88.34  88.34 

(a) 	 Includes receipts of ` 88.34 lakhs (previous year ` 88.34 lakhs) held with bank as margin money against guarantee 
given to MSEDCL.

10.	  OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Bank Deposits  587.83  -   
Security Deposits  0.01  0.01 
TOTAL                                              587.84  0.01 
Break-up:
Loans considered good - Secured  587.83  -   
Loans considered good - Unsecured  0.01  0.01 
Loans which have significant increase in Credit Risk  -    -   
Loans - Credit Impaired  -    -   
TOTAL  587.84  0.01 

	 Refer Note No. 37 for information about Credit Risk and Market Risk of Loans.

11. 	 CURRENT TAX ASSETS

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Advance Income Tax (including  tax deducted at source)  22.62  5.75 
Refund Due  8.28  8.28 
MAT Credit Entitlement  157.58  157.58 
TOTAL                                              188.48  171.61 
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12. 	 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
	
	 (Unsecured-considered good)

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Balances with VAT Authorities  6.95  8.60 
Balances with GST Authorities  -    1.77 
Interest accrued on Deposits  13.44  0.92 
Advance to Suppliers  0.15  0.15 
Others  72.80  103.03 
TOTAL                                              93.34  114.47 

13. 	 SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Authorised:
Equity Shares
1,92,70,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each  1,927.00  1,927.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:
1,92,41,280 Equity Shares of ` 10 each  1,924.13  1,924.13 

		
(a)	 Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:				 
								      

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021 
 No. of Shares  ` in lakhs  No. of Shares  ` in lakhs 

Authorised:
Equity Shares of ` 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year  1,92,70,000  1,927.00  1,92,70,000  1,927.00 
Balance at the end of the year  1,92,70,000  1,927.00  1,92,70,000  1,927.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up:
Equity Shares of ` 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year  1,92,41,280  1,924.13  1,92,41,280  1,924.13 
Balance at the end of the year  1,92,41,280  1,924.13  1,92,41,280  1,924.13 

	 The Company has not issued any Equity Shares during the current and in the previous year.						   

(b)	 Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares:							     
								      

(i) 	 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of Equity 
Shares is entitled to one vote per share and pro-rata dividend on the shares held.							     

								      
(ii) 	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining 

assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.							     
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	 (c)	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:							     
								      

Name of the Shareholder As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021 
 %  No.of Shares  %  No.of Shares 

Indo Count Industries Limited (Holding 
Company)

74.53%  1,43,41,280 74.53%  1,43,41,280 

								      
(d)	 There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / 

disinvestment.							    
								      
(e)	 Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters							     

								      
Name of the Shareholder As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021 

 %  No.of Shares  %  No.of Shares 
Indo Count Industries Limited (Holding 
Company)

74.53%  1,43,41,280 74.53%  1,43,41,280 

14.	 Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation of the Company with Indo Count Industries Limited, Holding Company, 
approved by the Board and No-objection received from BSE Limited and SEBI for the scheme, the Company had filed 
the application for amalgamation with Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench (NCLT).  As directed 
by the NCLT vide its order dated 18th August, 2021, the Company convened a meeting of its equity shareholders on 
15th November 2021 and the scheme of amalgamation was approved with requisite majority. Thereafter, the Company 
has filed a petition on 14th December, 2021 before the NCLT seeking sanction to the scheme and the petition is yet to 
be heard. The appointed date for the amalgamation is 1st October, 2020 or such other date as may be approved by 
NCLT and the scheme will be effective upon filing of order of NCLT approving the scheme with Registrar of Companies. 
  
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from appointed date, the Business (along with all assets and liabilities 
thereof) of the Company shall be transferred and vested with the transferee Company i.e. Indo Count Industries Limited 
(ICIL) on a going concern basis. As a consideration for the amalgamation, the transferee Company will issue its equity 
shares to the shareholders of the Company/transferor company as on the record date in a share exchange ratio of 2:15 
(i.e. 2 (Two) fully paid up equity shares of ` 2/- each of Indo Count Industries Limited (ICIL) would be issued to the Equity 
Shareholders of transferor company, for every 15 (Fifteen) equity shares of ` 10/- each. fully paid up 					   
	

15.	 INCOME TAX								     

	 The major components of Income Tax expense for the years ended 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 are:				  
				  

	 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS: 								      
	 Profit and Loss section	 		

Particulars ` in lakhs
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Current Income Tax:
Current Income Tax charge  -    -   
Adjustments in respect of Current Income Tax of previous year  -    -   
Deferred Tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  37.40  (236.16)
Income Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss  37.40  (236.16)
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	 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section

Particulars ` in lakhs
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Net loss / (gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans  0.05  11.58 
Income Tax charged to OCI  0.05  11.58 

	 DEFERRED TAX	
						    

Particulars ` in lakhs
Balance Sheet Profit and Loss

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Deferred Tax relates to the following:
Expenses allowable on payment basis 0.95 3.01  2.07  26.47 
Incomes allowable on receipt basis  -    -    -    -   
Unused Tax losses / depreciation 756.43 794.81  38.38  (228.22)
Accelerated depreciation for Tax purpose  (551.06)  (554.06)  (3.01)  (22.83)

206.32  243.76  37.44  (224.58)
Deferred Tax expenses / (income)
- Recognised in Profit and Loss  -    -    37.40  (236.16)
- Recognised in OCI  -    -    0.04  11.58 
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) 206.32  243.76  -    -   

206.32  243.76  37.44  (224.58)

	 Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)	
				  
	 Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Particulars ` in lakhs
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Deferred Tax Assets 757.38  797.82 
Deferred Tax Liabilities  (551.06)  (554.06)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 206.32  243.76 

	 Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

Particulars ` in lakhs
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening Balance as of 1 April  243.76  19.18 
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in Profit and Loss  (37.40)  236.16 
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in OCI  (0.04)  (11.58)
Closing Balance as at 31 March 206.32  243.76 
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16.	 TRADE PAYABLES DUE TO MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES						    
									       

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Payables  -    -   
TOTAL  -    -   

	 Note:
	 The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 

2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
a)	 The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the 

year
 -    -   

b)	 Interest accrued and due to suppliers under the Act, on the above 
amount

 -    -   

c) 	 Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed 
day, during the year

 -    -   

d)	 Interest paid to suppliers under the Act  -    -   
e)	 Interest due and payable to suppliers under the Act, for payments 

already made
 -    -   

f)	 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year under the 
Act

 -    -   

g) 	 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years for the purpose of disallowances under Section 23 of 
the Act

 -    -   

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the MSMED Act is based on the information available with the 
Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from 
them on requests made by the Company. 

17. 	 TRADE PAYABLES DUE TO OTHER THAN MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Payable to Holding Company  572.43  572.43 
TOTAL  572.43  572.43 
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	 Note:							     
	 Trade Payable ageing schedule							    
							     

Particulars Unbilled 
dues

Not due Outstanding for following years from due date of payment
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

As at March 31,2022
(i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  -    -    -    87.51  484.92  -    572.43 
Total :-  -    -    -    87.51  484.92  -    572.43 
As at March 31,2021
(i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  -    -    105.27  467.16  -    -    572.43 
Total :-  -    -    105.27  467.16  -    -    572.43 

18.	 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES					   
							     

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Security Deposits  338.65  30.25 
TOTAL  338.65  30.25 

19. 	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
Income Received in Advance  95.59  -   
Other Payables (a)  58.50  68.56 
TOTAL  154.09  68.56 

	 (a) 	 There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund.				  
	

20.	 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (IND AS) 37 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT 
LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS		

					   
	 (a)	 Movement in Provisions / Contingent Liabilities	
						    

Particulars ` in lakhs
 Bank Guarantees  Income Tax 

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Carrying amount at the beginning of the 
year*

 88.34  88.34  0.40  0.40 

Additions made during the year#  -    -    1.14  -   
Amounts used during the year  -    -    -    -   
Unused amounts reversed during the year#  -    -    -    -   
Carrying amount at the end of the year*  88.34  88.34  1.54  0.40 
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Particulars ` in lakhs
 VAT  Other Litigation Claims  Total  

 31.03.2022  31.03.2021  31.03.2022  31.03.2021  31.03.2022  31.03.2021 
Carrying amount at the 
beginning of the year*

 43.87  -    12.24  10.94  144.85  99.68 

Additions made during the 
year#

 -    43.87  0.67  1.30  1.81  45.17 

Amounts used during the year  -    -    2.75  -    2.75  -   
Unused amounts reversed 
during the year#

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Carrying amount at the end 
of the year*

 43.87  43.87  10.16  12.24  143.91  144.85 

		  *Carrying amounts comprise of non-current and current provisions.							     
		  #Additional provision made during the year is included in the respective head of accounts.						    

	
	 (b)	 Nature of Provisions:							     

	
(i) 	 Provision for Excise Duty / Customs Duty / Service Tax represents the differential liability that is expected to 

materialise in respect of matters in appeal.							      	
(ii) 	 Provision for litigation related obligations represents liabilities that are expected to materialise in respect of 

matters in appeal.							     

21.	 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS							    
				  

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
1) Sale of Products *
     - Manufactured  -    519.48 
2) Other Operating Revenue
     - Export Incentives / Benefits  -    0.60 
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  -    520.08 

	  * Includes sale to Holding Company ` Nil  lakhs (previous year ` 198.67 lakhs). 

	 Disaggregation of Revenue 
	 Revenue based on Geography		  	
			 

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Domestic  -    480.20 
Export  -    39.88 
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  -    520.08 
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	 Reconciliation of Revenue from Operations with Contract Price 

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Contract Price  -    520.08 
Less:
Sales Returns  -    -   
Others  -    -   
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  -    520.08 

22. 	 OTHER INCOME

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Interest - Banks    17.33  8.98 
Interest - Others    3.56  4.27 
Miscellaneous Receipts and Incomes  21.60  5.93 
Income Staff Deployment  44.97  11.60 
Lease Rent Income  292.25  30.16 
Sundry balances / Excess provision written back (net)  -    0.02 
Liability no longer payable written back  16.63  19.19 
TOTAL  396.34  80.15 

23.	 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Raw Material & Components Consumed
Opening Stock  -    249.62 
Add: Purchases  -    23.92 
Less : Material Returned out of Opening Stock  -    115.74 
SUB-TOTAL  -    157.80 
Less: Closing Stock  -    -   
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED  -    157.80 
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24. 	 CHANGES IN  INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE 

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Opening Stock
Finished Goods  -    211.63 
Stock in Process  -    164.22 
Waste  -    23.08 
SUB-TOTAL  A  -    398.93 
Less: Closing Stock
Finished Goods  -    -   
Stock in Process  -    -   
Waste  -    -   
SUB-TOTAL  B  -    -   
(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCK A-B  -    398.93 

25. 	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Salaries & Wages  113.47  186.25 
Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  6.56  14.69 
Gratuity  3.46  22.76 
Staff Welfare Expense  0.88  0.63 
TOTAL  124.37  224.33 

26. 	 FINANCE COST

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Interest Expense
 - Banks  -    1.24 
 - Others  0.62  3.97 
Bank Charges  0.07  2.51 
TOTAL  0.69  7.72 
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27. 	 DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Depreciation  83.96  120.27 
TOTAL  83.96  120.27 

28. 	 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Consumption of Stores, Spares and Packing Materials  -    3.03 
Power & Fuel  16.88  79.70 
Rates, Taxes & Fees  11.27  13.75 
Insurance  7.35  17.20 
Repairs to Machinery  0.59  0.73 
Repairs to Buildings  0.65  0.05 
Commission & Brokerage  8.55  1.43 
Freight Outward  -    1.93 
Miscellaneous Expenses (a)  32.39  35.34 
TOTAL  77.68  153.16 

	 (a) 	 Includes payment to Statutory Auditors

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
As Statutory Audit Fees  2.00  2.00 
As Quarterly Audit / Limited Review Fees  1.50  1.50 
As Tax Audit Fees  0.50  0.50 
In Other Capacity  0.10  0.13 
TOTAL  4.10  4.13 

29. 	 Exceptional item represents the expenditure incurred on account of VRS/Separation Scheme approved by the Board on 
July 15, 2020.
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30. 	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (to the extent not provided for)
	
	 A. 	 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars ` in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2022
As at 

31.03.2021
i)  Bank Guarantees  88.34  88.34 
ii) Pending Labour Cases  10.16  12.24 
iii) Income Tax Matter  1.54  0.40 
iv) VAT  43.87  43.87 

	
	 B. 	 Commitments: Nil							    

31.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE								      
	
	 Related party disclosures as required by IND-AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” are given below:			   			 

		
	 i)	 Key Management Personnel:								      
		  Ashok G. Halasangi - Chief Executive Officer								      
											         
	 ii)	 Holding Company:								      
		  Indo Count Industries Ltd.								      
											            ` in lakhs 

Nature of transaction Holding Company Key Management 
Personnel

Total

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Transactions during the year:
- Remuneration Paid  -    -    19.85  19.85  19.85  19.85 
- Reimbursement of Expenses  -    0.02  -    -    -    0.02 
- Sale of Goods  -    198.67  -    -    -    198.67 
- Sale of Stores & Packing Material  -    8.86  -    -    -    8.86 
- Rent Received  200.68 30.15  -    -    200.68 30.15
- Salary for Deputed Staff  44.97  11.60  -    -    44.97  11.60 
Balance Outstanding at the year 
end:
- Creditors for Raw Material  566.44  566.44  -    -    566.44  566.44 
- Creditors for Others  6.00  6.00  -    -    6.00  6.00 
- Security Deposits  against lease 
assets

 98.25  30.00  -    -    98.25  30.00 

											         
	 Related parties enlisted above are those having transactions with the Company.
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32.	 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (IND-AS) 33 “EARNINGS PER SHARE”			 
					   
Particulars UoM For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Face Value of Equity Share Rs  10.00  10.00 
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding Nos.  1,92,41,280  1,92,41,280 
Profit / (Loss) for the year (Continuing Operations) `in lakhs  72.25  (590.86)
EARNING PER SHARE (BASIC AND DILUTED) `  0.38  (3.07)

	
33.	 The Company is exclusively engaged in the activity of manufacture of the cotton yarn which constitutes a single reportable 

segment in the context of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) 108 on “Operating Segments” issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.								      

											         
34.	 OTHER INFORMATION								      
											         

Particulars ` in lakhs
For the year 

01.04.2021 to 
31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Earnings in Foreign Currency
 - FOB Value of Exports
(Including deemed exports of ` Nil (previous year ` 182.42 lakhs))	

 -    213.80 

35.	 DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (IND-AS) 19 “EMPLOYEE BENEFITS”			 
					   
(a)	 Defined Contribution Plans:		

						    
	 Amount of  ` 6.56 lakhs (previous year ` 14.69 lakhs) is recognised as an expense and included in Employee 

Benefits Expense paid under the following defined contribution plans (Refer Note 25, supra):						    
		
Particulars ` in lakhs

For the year 
01.04.2021 to 

31.03.2022

For the year 
01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021
Benefits (Contribution to):
Provident fund  5.75  11.79 
Employee State Insurance Scheme  0.80  2.90 
Labour Welfare Scheme  0.01  -   
TOTAL  6.56  14.69

 			 
(b)	 Defined Benefit Plans:		
						    
	 Gratuity		
						    
	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan 

provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, 
of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of 
five continuous years of service in accordance with Indian Law.		

						    



81Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited Annual Report 2021-22

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

	 The Company makes annual contributions to the Life Insurance Corporation of India, which is funded defined benefit 
plan for qualifying employees.								      

											         
	 Leave Encashment Benefit								     
		
	 The Company provides for leave encashment, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The 

Leave Encashment Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or 
termination of employment, of an amount equivalent to 15 days’ salary for each completed year of service, subject 
to maximum of 90 days till retirement.								      

		
	 The Company makes annual contributions to the Life Insurance Corporation of India, which is funded defined benefit 

plan for qualifying employees.								      

Sr. 
No.

Particulars  ` in lakhs 
 GRATUITY  LEAVE ENCASHMENT 

2021-22 
(funded)

2020-21 
(funded)

2021-22 
(funded)

2020-21 
(funded)

I Change in present value of defined 
benefit obligation during the year                                                      

1 Present Value of defined benefit 
obligation at the beginning of the year

 18.82  193.92  7.44  31.49 

2 Interest cost  0.96  12.41  0.37  1.93 
3 Current service cost  2.33  22.76  1.06  5.43 
4 Past service cost  -    -    -    -   
5 Liability transfer from other Company  -    -    -    -   
6 Liability transferred out/ divestment  -    -    -    -   
7 Benefits paid directly by employer  -    -    -    -   
8 Benefits paid  (2.61)  (166.20)  (0.41)  (19.67)
9 Actuarial changes arising from 

changes in demographic assumptions
 -    -    -    -   

10 Actuarial changes arising from 
changes in financial assumptions

 (0.70)  0.48  (0.26)  0.18 

11 Actuarial changes arising from 
changes in experience adjustments

 (0.27)  (44.55)  (1.04)  (11.92)

12 Present Value of defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the year

 18.53  18.82  7.15  7.44 

II Change in fair value of plan assets 
during the year

1 Fair value of plan assets at the 
beginning of the year

 57.03  128.52  20.26  37.99 

2 Interest Income  2.76  6.17  1.37  1.94 
3 Contributions paid by the employer  -    88.52  -    -   
4 Benefits paid from the fund  (2.61)  (166.20)  (0.41)  (19.67)
5 Assets transferred out/ divestments  (31.24)  -    -    -   
6 Return on plan assets excluding 

interest income
 -    -    -    -   

7 Fair value of plan assets at the end of 
the year

 25.94  57.03  21.22  20.26 
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Sr. 
No.

Particulars  ` in lakhs 
 GRATUITY  LEAVE ENCASHMENT 

2021-22 
(funded)

2020-21 
(funded)

2021-22 
(funded)

2020-21 
(funded)

III Net asset / (liability) recognised in 
the balance sheet

1 Present Value of defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the year

 18.53  18.82  7.15  7.44 

2 Fair value of plan assets at the end of 
the year

 25.94  57.03  21.22  20.26 

3 Amount recognised in the balance 
sheet

 (7.41)  (38.20)  (14.07)  (12.82)

4 Net (liability) / asset - current  -    -    -    -   
5 Net (liability) / asset - non-current  7.41  38.20  14.07  12.82 
IV Expenses recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss for the 
year

1 Current service cost  2.33  22.76  1.06  5.43 
2 Interest cost on benefit obligation (net)  (2.61)  3.77  (0.89)  (0.62)
3 Actuarial changes arising from 

changes in demographic assumptions
 -    -    -    -   

4 Actuarial changes arising from 
changes in financial assumptions

 -    -    -    -   

5 Actuarial changes arising from 
changes in experience adjustments

 -    -    (1.04)  (11.92)

6 Return on Plan Assets excluding 
amount included in ‘Net interest on net 
Defined Liability / (Asset)’ above

 -    -    (0.35)  0.80 

7 Total expenses included in employee 
benefits expense

 (0.29)  26.53  (1.24)  (6.32)

V Recognised in other comprehensive 
income for the year

1 Actuarial changes arising from 
changes in demographic assumptions

 -    -    -    -   

2 Actuarial changes arising from 
changes in financial assumptions

 (0.70)  0.48  -    -   

3 Actuarial changes arising from 
changes in experience adjustments

 (0.27)  (44.55)  -    -   

4 Return on plan assets excluding 
interest income

 0.81  2.46  -    -   

5 Recognised in other comprehensive 
income

 (0.16)  (41.61)  -    -   

VI Maturity profile of defined benefit 
obligation

1 Within the next 12 months (next annual 
reporting period)

 6.58  7.11  2.54  2.93 

2 Between 2 and 5 years  4.01  3.37  1.91  1.46 
3 Between 6 and 10 years  8.26  6.75  2.52  2.45 
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Sr. 
No.

Particulars  ` in lakhs 
 GRATUITY  LEAVE ENCASHMENT 

2021-22 
(funded)

2020-21 
(funded)

2021-22 
(funded)

2020-21 
(funded)

VII Quantitative sensitivity analysis for 
significant assumption is as below:
Increase / (decrease) on present 
valueof defined benefits obligation at 
the end of the year
(i)	 Hundred basis point increase in 

discount rate
 (17.62)  (17.81)  (6.81)  (7.06)

(ii)	 Hundred basis point decrease in 
discount rate

 19.54  19.97  7.53  7.87 

(i)	 Hundred basis point increase in 
rate of salary increase

 19.44  19.86  7.53  7.86 

(ii)	 Hundred basis point decrease in 
rate of salary increase

 (17.70)  (17.89)  (6.81)  (7.06)

								      
VIII	 Sensitivity Analysis Method	
						    
	 Sensitivity analysis is determined based on the expected movement in liability if the assumptions were not 

proved to be true on different count.							     
								      
IX	  The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total	
						    

Particulars  Gratuity  Leave Encashment 
 2021-22 (funded)  2020-21 (funded)  2021-22 (funded)  2020-21 (funded) 

Insurer Managed Funds  100% 100% 100% 100%
								      
X	 Actuarial Assumptions	
						    

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment
 2021-22 (funded)  2020-21 (funded)  2021-22 (funded)  2020-21 (funded) 

1 Discount Rate 6.96% p.a. 6.26% p.a. 6.96% p.a. 6.26% p.a.
2 Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
3 Mortality rate 

during employment
Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14)
4 Mortality post 

retirement rate
NA NA NA NA

5 Employee Rate 
Turnover

5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

6 Future Benefit Cost 
Inflation 

NA NA NA NA

	 Expected contribution to the defined benefit plan for the next annual reporting period.							     
	
(i)	 The actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried 

out at 31 March, 2021. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service 
cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.				  



84Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited Annual Report 2021-22

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(ii)	 Discount rate is based on the prevailing  market  yields of Indian Government Securities as at the Balance 
Sheet  date for the estimated term of the obligations.		

(iii)	 The salary escalation rate is arrived after taking into consideration the seniority, the promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as, demand and supply in employment market.							     

36.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS.				  
				  
	 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 

in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.							     
	

	 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:								      

1	 Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current 
liabilities, short term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due 
to the short-term maturities of these instruments.							     

										        
2	 Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters 

such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are 
taken to account for the expected lossess of these receivables.							    

										        
	 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments 

by valuation technique:							     
										        

Level 1 :  quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.							     
Level 2 :  other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, 

either directly or indirectly.							     
Leval 3 : techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 

observable market data.							     
								         `in lakhs 
Particulars  Carrying 

amount 
 Fair Value 

 As at 
01.04.2021 

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:
Trade Receivables  -    -    -    -   
Loans and Other Receivables (non-Current)  0.69  -    -    0.69 
Loans and Other Receivables (Current)  0.01  -    -    0.01 
Cash and Bank Balances  32.41  -    -    -   
Bank Deposits  88.34  -    -    -   
TOTAL  121.45  -    -    0.70 
Financial Assets at fair value through Profit and Loss:
Derivative instruments  -    -    -    -   
Investments  -    -    -    -   
TOTAL  -    -    -    -   
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
Trade and Other Payables  572.43  -    -    -   
Other Financial Liabilities (Current)  30.25  -    -    30.25 
TOTAL  602.68  -    -    30.25 
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 `in lakhs 
Particulars  Carrying 

amount 
 Fair Value 

 As at 
01.04.2022 

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:
Trade Receivables  -    -    -    -   
Loans and Other Receivables (non-Current)  0.69  -    -    0.69 
Loans and Other Receivables (Current)  587.84  -    -    587.84 
Cash and Bank Balances  36.63  -    -    -   
Bank Deposits  88.34  -    -    -   
TOTAL  713.50  -    -    588.53 
Financial Assets at fair value through Profit and Loss:
Investments  -    -    -    -   
TOTAL  -    -    -    -   
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:
Trade and Other Payables  572.43  -    -    -   
Other Financial Liabilities (Current)  338.65  -    -    338.65 
TOTAL  911.09  -    -    338.65 

During the reporting period ending 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and 
Level 2 fair value measurements.							    
							     
Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:							     
The following table shows the valuation techniques and inputs used for financial instruments:						    
	
Particulars As at  

31.03.2022
As at  

31.03.2021
Other Financial Liabilities (Non-Current)  Discounted Cash Flow method using 

risk adjusted discount rate 

37.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES		
						    

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The 
Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the Managing Board.	
							     
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price 
of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, 
foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. 
Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign 
currency receivables, payables, loans and borrowings.		
						    
The Company manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control 
over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives 
and policies, which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department 
includes management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures, borrowing 
strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.								      

			 
					   



86Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited Annual Report 2021-22

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

Interest Rate Risk								     

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. In order to optimize the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense 
and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by 
balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.							     
	
The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.							     
	
Foreign Currency Risk	
							     
The Company is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as at the respective reporting dates.						    
										        
Credit Risk	
							     
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage 
this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, 
current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Individual risk limits 
are set accordingly.								      

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant 
increase in credit risk the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the 
risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forward looking information such 
as:		
						    
- 	 Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,	
							     
- 	 Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty,	
							     
- 	 Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet 

its obligations,								     

- 	 Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,	

- 	 Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third party guarantees 
or credit enhancements.								      

										        
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage 
in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company categorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails 
to make contractual payments greater than 2 years past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the 
Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are 
made, they are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.								      

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customer based on 
historical trend, industrial practices and the business environment in which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on 
actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material, 
hence no additional provision considered.								      
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Exposure to Credit Risk									       
							        ` in lakhs 
Particulars As at  

31.03.2022
As at  

31.03.2021
Financial Assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months 
Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
Investments in Unquoted Shares  -    -   
Cash and Bank Balances  36.63  32.41 
Bank Deposits  88.34  88.34 
Other Current Financial Assets  587.84  0.01 

	 Financial Assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
 ` in lakhs 

Particulars As at  
31.03.2022

As at  
31.03.2021

Trade Receivables  -    -   

	 Balance with banks is subject to low credit risks due to good credit ratings assigned to these banks.

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provision) has been considered from the date the invoice falls due. 

Particulars  ` in lakhs 
As at 31.03.2022
Not Due  -   
Up to 3 months  -   
TOTAL  -   
As at 31.03.2021
Not Due  -   
Up to 3 months  -   
TOTAL  -   

									       
During the year the Company has recognised loss allowance of ` Nil Under 12 months Expected Credit Loss model.			
						    
No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period.					   
				  
Liquidity Risk
									       
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable 
price. The Company’s treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In 
addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the 
Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.							     
		
Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities	
								      
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilties at the reporting date 
based on contractual undiscounted payments.	



88Pranavaditya Spinning Mills Limited Annual Report 2021-22

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

As at 31.03.2022 	 ` in lakhs
Particulars  Less than 1 year  1 to 5 years  Total 
Trade Payables  572.43  -    572.43 
Other Financial Liabilities  338.65  -    338.65 

As at 31.03.2021	 ` in lakhs
Particulars  Less than 1 year  1 to 5 years  Total 
Trade Payables  572.43  -    572.43 
Other Financial Liabilities  30.25  -    30.25 

Capital Management		
							     
For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. 
The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximise shareholder value. The Company manages 
its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the 
financial covenants. 									       
									       
The Company monitors capital using Gearing Ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt:					   
				  
Particulars  ` in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 
Total Debt  -    -   
Equity  2,470.65  2,398.29 
Capital and Debt  2,470.65  2,398.29 
GEARING RATIO 0% 0%

		
38.	 DETAILS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE AND GUARANTEE GIVEN COVERED UNDER SECTION 186(4) 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.									       
									       
There are no loans given, investment made and guarantee given, covered under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 
2013.									       

39.	 ANALYTICAL RATIOS								      
										        

S. 
N.

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 2022 March  2021 Variance Reasons  for the 
Variances 

(a) Current 
Ratio

Current 
Assets

Current 
Liabilities

 0.94  0.61 53.11% Increase in ratio due to 
increase in profitability 

(b) Debt-Equity 
Ratio

Total Debt Shareholders’ 
Equity 

 -    -    -   N.A.

(c) Debt 
Service 
Coverage 
Ratio

Earning for 
Debt Service

Debt Service  226.71  (59.93) 478.27% Increase in ratio due to 
increase in profitability 

(d) Return on 
Equity Ratio

Net Profits 
after Taxes

Average 
Shareholder’s 
Equity

 0.03 (0.22) 113.45% Increase in ratio due to 
increase in profitability 
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S. 
N.

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 2022 March  2021 Variance Reasons  for the 
Variances 

(e) Inventory 
Turnover 
Ratio

Cost of 
Goods Sold

Average 
Inventory 

 -    2.99 -100.00% Change in Ratio 
because of no Sales 
during the Current Year.

(f) Trade 
Receivable 
Turnover 
Ratio

Net  Sales Average Trade 
Receivable  

 -    2.42 -100.00% Change in Ratio 
because of no 
Receivables and Sales 
during the Current Year.

(g) Trade 
Payable 
Ratio

Net 
Purchases 

Average Trade 
Payables   

 -    0.03 -100.00% Change in Ratio 
because of no 
Purchases  during the 
Current Year.

(h) Net Capital 
Turnover 
Ratio

Net Sales Average 
Working Capital 

 -    (2.00) 100.00% Change in Ratio 
because of no Sales 
during the Current Year.

(i) Net Profit 
Ratio

Net Profit Net Sales  -    (1.14) 100.00% Increase in ratio due to 
increase in profitability 

(j) Return on 
Capital 
Employed 

Earning 
before 
Interest and 
Taxes

Capital 
Employed

 0.04  (0.34) 113.07% Increase in ratio due to 
increase in profitability 

(k) Return on 
Investment

Earning 
before 
Interest and 
Taxes

Closing Total 
Assets

 0.03  (0.27) 111.69% Increase in ratio due to 
increase in profitability 

	
40.	 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III			 
					   

i)	 The Company does not hold any  benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 
1988) and rules made thereunder, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company.			 
					   

ii)	 The Company has no borrowings from banks and financial institutions secured against Current Assets.				  
				  

iii)	 During the year the Company was not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other 
lender.								      

iv)	 During the year there are no transactions with Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 
or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.								      

v)	 During the year the Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.								      

vi)	 During the year no Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 
230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 except reported in Note 14 of the Financial Statements.						    
		

vii)	 During the year the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.				  
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viii)	 During the year the Company has not received  funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.								      

ix)	 During the year no amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).				  
				  

x)	 During the year CSR activities under section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 was not applicable to the Company.		
						    

xi)	 There was no trade or investment in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the Financial Year.					   
			 

xii)	 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
or both during the current or previous year.								      

xiii)	 During the year no registration or satisfaction of charge was pending to be registered with ROC.				  

41.	 IMPACT OF COVID PANDEMIC AND RELATED LOCKDOWN MEASURES									      
	
	 In order to break the chain of second wave of COVID-19 pandemic in Kolhapur district, the District Disaster Management, 

Kolhapur vide its order dated May 13, 2021, directed the industrial undertakings in the District of Kolhapur to temporarily 
close the industrial operations for 8 days from May 15, 2021 (12.00 a.m.) to May 23, 2021 (12.00 a.m.). The Company 
complied with the said order and as the manufacturing operations in the Company were stopped, as informed earlier to 
the exchange, this did not have material impact on operations of the Company.									       
		

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co., S. K. Agrawal Anil Kumar Jain
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director
Firm Regd. No.: 500063N DIN - 00400892 DIN - 00086106

Ankur Bagla
Partner K. Muralidharan A. G. Halasangi Amruta Avasare
Membership No.: 521915 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary
New Delhi, April 28, 2022	 Mumbai, April 28, 2022






